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Notice Of The Eleventh Annual General Meeting

NOTIGCE I8 HEREBY GIVEN that the Elmventh Annual Genoral Maaling of the Comparny will be held &t Ramada
Plara Malpka, Jalan Bendahara, 75100 Malnka on Friday, 28 June 2013 &l 1030 am for the killowing
puUTpOGSE"-

AGENDA
1. Te receive the Audiied Financial Siatements for the financial year ended 31 December  (Plonsa rafer
2012 together with the Reporis of the Direciom and the Audiloms Iheman, Lo Explanutory
Nate 2(1)
Z To approve the poyment of Directomn’ fRes for tha fimancial year ended 31 December  (Reaoluton 1)
2012.

4  To re-elect the following Direciom who are retifing Ih acoordance lo Adicle 82 of the
Company's Aricles of Associstinn and being eligible, have offered themuslyes for

m-elaction: -
(8) Sal Chin Hoak (Raseliien 2)
(b} See Wan Sang (Rasolution 3)

4 o re-nppoint Messms. Emat & Young ns Auditors of (he Company untll the conchusion  (Resolution 4)
of ihe nexi Annual Geneml Mesting end lo authoriss the Direciors 1o fiv their
remuneralion.

6 As Bpacial Buninmss
To conaldar and, I thought fit, with or without any modification, o pasa tha follewing
resalulions as Ordinary Rasnlufions:

Ordinary Resolution 1
- Authority {o lasus Sharss

THAT mubject alwnys 1o (he Companies Act, 1985, (he Aricles of Asscoiation of the  (Resolulion 5)
Company and the spprovals of ine meievant govemmentall reguistary suthorities, If
applicabls, tha Dirciors be and ars horeby empowsared pursiant 1o Saction 1320 of
tha Companies Aci, 1985, to [ssun shares (nths Company from time o time and upon
such lerma and conditions and for such purposes-as the Direclors may in their ebacivts
dmecration deam 0t provided that the aggregats number of shares ssusd pursuant to
(Hin resc|ution does riol sxcaed 109% of (he oty ssuesd capial of ine Company for the
Lime being and thal the Cirectors be and ane also empowerad o oblaln the approval lor
s Msling of and guolslion for the addlonal shares so issusd on Bursa Malaysla
Sacurilies Berhad and that such authorty shall continus in force until the conclusion of
the nest Annual Genaral Mesling of The Company.

Annual Raport 2012
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Notice Of The Eleventh Annual General Meeting

Ordinary Resolutlon 2
- Retenilon of independont Non-Sxecullve Director

THAT Mr, Slow Kot Yen ba and s hereby relained 8s an Independent Non-Exetulve (Rasolution B)
Dirsclor of tha Company and to hold ofice unlll the sonclusion of the naxt Annual
Ganoral Mesting pursuant i tha Malayslan Code on Corporala Govermeance 2012,

Ordinary Reaslutian 3
« Retontion of Independent Non-Execullve Direclor

THAT Punn Adiliah bintl Ahmad Nerdin be and | hereby eleined as gn indepondent  (Rasoliion 1)
Non-Exncutive Direcior of the Company and o hold offics untll the condusion of the

rext Annunl General Mesting pursuant to the Melmyslan Coda on Corpomte

Governanca 2012

Ordinary Resalution 4
- Propesed Renswal of Existing Shureholders' Mandate lor Recurment Related

Party Transactions of s Revenus or Trading Nature ("Propossd Renews| af
Sharshaldars' Mandate"™)

THAT, subject to the provislons of Lisling Roguiements of Bursa Malaysia Socurliies  (Resolulion B)
Borhad, approval be snd 8 hereby given lo the Company and! or lis aubaldiary

companias to enler into mecumant releted party transactions of & revanue or imading
riesture 22 a0t ol In Pordl A Sactlon 2.3 of the Clreuler to Sharehoiders dated 8 June

2013, provided that such imnosctions are underoken in the ordinery course of

businoss, on am's length basis, on nommel commarclal terme which are nol mom

evoursble o tha ralatad party than thoss ganemly avallghle 1o the publle and &re nol

dotrimental to the minority sharsha(dars;

THAT such approval shal eontinus to bo I forcs untl-

([} the conclusion of the next Annunl General Mesting (AGM) of the Company at
which time Il will lapse unless the authority la renewed by a resolulion passed at
the e AGM:

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM Is 1o be held purusnt fo
Section 143(1) of the Companies Act, 1985 (“he Act") (bul must not xtend to
such exiension s may be aliowed pursuen! to Section 143(2) of the Acl); or

() revoked orvaried by resclution passed by the shareholdera in a genemal mesting,
before lhe next AGM;

whichever is sarlar;
AMD THAT the Direclors of the Company be sulhorised lo complete end doe all such
poin wnd things (inchiding executing all such documents as may be required) es (hey

may consider expedient or necesaary o give offect lo the Proposeo Renewal of
Shurohotders’ Mandate.
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Notice Of The Eleventh Annual General Meeting

Ovrdinary Resolution 5
- Ranewal of Auth faor the Com to Purchans (ts Cwn Share
("Froposad Renawnal of Shara Buy-Back Autharity™)

THAT, subisc always fo tha Companies Act, 1665, the provisiona of (he Memorandum {Resolution &)
and Ariclas of Associallon of tha Company, the Listing Requinmants of Bursa Malaysia
Becurites Berhad ["Bumsa Securilies™), and all other applicable lews, guidefines, niles
and regulations, If applicable, the Company be and is beraby authorised to purchase
such amourt of ardinony shares of RM1.00 each In the Company as may be determined
by the Directors of the Company fram tima o tima through Bursa Seourldes sa the
Bireclors may desm Tl end expedient in the inlerest of the Company, provided (hat

(il e sggregete number of shares purchassd does nol axceed 100 of the jolal
issued and pold-up shore capkal of the Company 28 quoted on Bursa Seountlos
s gl tha polnl of purchaea;

iy =namount not axssodling the Company's audiod retained profil andf or share
premivm accounl for the financial year anded 31 Dacamber 2012 al the Bmes of
tha purchasa(s) will be alocsisd by (e Company Ior the purchiass of own
ehams; and

(W) the Direclors of the Company may decida althar o retain the shares purchassd
an treasury shams or cancal tha shams of retsin part of the shares so punchased
a8 treasury ahames and cancel the remaindsr or to resell the shamss or distibute
e sharas as glvidands,

AND THAT the authortty contamad by mis resoiuilon shall commsnzs immsdiately and
ahall continue fo oa I Tores urtll e conclusion of the next Annual Genaral Mesting of
the Company following Ihw pasnaing of Ihis Ordinary Resolullon, unioss aarisr mvokad
or varied by an Ordinary Resolution of the shambciders of the Company In @ generml
masting;

AMD THAT suthority be and Iz haraby given io the Direciors of Ihe Company to aol and

lake nll such steps and do all thinga as are necassary or expedient o Implement,
finalise and give Tull effect lo the sforesald purchase.

6. To traneacli any olther business of which dus noliee shell heve been given in
mccordance with the Companles Acl 19885 ond lhe Aricles of Assoclafion of the
Company.

By Crdar ol tha Board
CHUA SIEW CHUAN [MAICSA OTTTHED)
SEAN NE TEO (LS DOOBOSS)

Company Secretaros

Malaka
& Juna 2043
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Notice Of The Eleventh Annual General Meeting

HOTES:
1.  Appaintmant of Proxy

l} Inrespect of deposiiad securlies, only members whose names appaar in he Record of Deposiiors on
21 Juna 2013 [(Genorel Mesiing Record of Depositors™) shall be eligible to ationd, spetk and vots &t the
teoting,

() A mamber enlithed 1o altand and vols al the Mesling is enliled 1o sppoinl mon tan one praxy 1o sltend
ond vots in his stnad. A proxy moy but does nof noad io ba 8 membar of the Company ond the prordaions
of Saofion 148 (1)(b) of tha Companias Acl, 1865 nesd not be complied with, Whems a mamber oppolms
mara than ona pronty, the appoimments shall bo invalld unlass he gpoeciiios the proportons of his
sharmhaldings Lo ba represenind by aach prody. A proxy appainlad 1o sitand and vaie &t s Mesaling ahall
have Lha eama rights ao the mambay lo spaak 8 the Meeting. Notwithstanding this, a mambar sntitled to
aftend and vofe at lhe Mesting & entitiad 1o appoint any parson az his proxy bo aftend and vote instsad of
tha mambsar at tha Meating. Thers ahall ba no restriction as lo 1he qualfications of tha proxy.

(i) In the case of & corpomis mamber, the nstrument appoinling & prosy munt be aither under s comman
gaal or undar tha hand of its officer or aftomay duly aulthorised.

(V) Where a membor of tha Company is an exampl authortsed nomines which hoids ordinary ahama in the
Company for mulliple benefidal ownem in one securites sccount (“omnibus scczunt’), there is na limil o
{he number of prosdes which Ihe emmpl suthortsed nomines may &ppolint In mepect of aach emnlbus
eccount i hobds.

W) The Instrument appointing & proxy must be depoalted a! the Registered Office at No, 801, Julen Lagends
5§, Teman 1 Lagenda, 75400 Meloks not lesas than 48 hours bafore the Ume for halding the Mesting or al
any adjoimmenl (Hhereol

2 Explanatory Notas to 8pacinl Businans:-

()  tnm 1 of tha Agents
This Agenda fem s meant forn discussion only, B= the provisien of Seclion 188{!) of Ihe Companies Ast,
1965 doss not require @ formel approval of the shareholders o e Audilsd Financial Statermants. Hendes,
this Aganaa item is nol pu! farwnard Tar voting.

) Authorty io lssue shares pursusnt to Baction 132D of the Companies Ast, 1965
The proposad Ordinary Resolution 1, If passad, will smpower tha Dimcions of tha Campany to lssus and allak
8 any tma 1o such paraons In el ahaolubs diacrdion withou! convaning B genaal mesting provided
the aggragals number of the shames lssund doss not excesd 10% of the |msusd shore capltal of the
Cornpany for the tima baing (hersrafter refemed (o as the "General Mandate™),

The Genaml Mandntn will provide Rexibllity to the Company for allatmen! of shares for any poasibls fund
ralaing molividsa, \ncluding bul not fmilad to hither placing of shares fof the purposs of funding Rulurs
imvesiment projectis), working capital and! or acguistlion{s),

This Ganeral Mandate (s renewil As at the dits of this Notlce, na new shares In the Campany were (ssued

pursinnt lo the mandate granted io te Directors st tha Tenih Annusl Gansml Mesting held on 29 June 2012
and which will lapse &l the conclusion of tha Elavanth Annual General Meating.
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Notice Of The Eleventh Annual General Meeting

(I Retantion as indepandent Non-Executive Directors of the Company pursuant o the Malayalan
Cods on Corporate Govermance 2012 [“"MCCG 20127)

Mr, Slow K Yan and Pusn Aditah bintl Ahmad Nomdin Ware appolmed as Ingapandan! Non-Exscutive
Dirsctors of the Company an 2 Decambac 2002, and have reachad cumulative nina(d) yesars tam limit
mecommanded by e MCCQ 2012 In accordancs With e MCCGE 2012, the Board of Directors of ha
Companmy, &fter having sssassed he Indapandanca of Mr, Skiow Kas Yen and Puan Adillah bindl Ahmad
Mordin, regarded them fo ba Indepandent Dasad amongst olbems, the Milowing |ustfications and
recommands that Me, Slow Kea Yen and Puan Adiish binil Ahmad Nordin s ralained as Indapanoant
Non-Exacitive Dirsctors of e Company:

a. They have mal he indepsndence guldelines ms el oul in Chepler 1 of the Main Marks! Listing
Reqgulremants of Burss Sacurdtles,

B They do nol have any confict of inlersst with tha Compsany and has not bean entaring ( are nod
uxpectsd o enler inlo contract(s) espacially matanal contraci{s) with e Company and | or Its
nubsidiary companies; snd

8. The Board of Dirsclons 18 of ihe opinksn tial Mr. Siow Kee Yen and Pusn Adllah Binll Alwned Nordln
are Imporlinl Independent Norn-Exscutive Directons of the Board I view of thelr many yeans on the
Baard with Incumbeni knowledge of Uwe Company and e Croup's activithes and corporals hislory
and have provided invaluable confribulions Lo the Board (h thelr role ae Indapendent Mon-Execulive
Direciors.,

(iv) Propowsd Renswasl of Sheehoiders' Mundale
The proposed Ordinary Resolulion 4, If pessed, will allow the Group o antisr inlo recument relaled party
transaclions of & revenue of tading neture purayent o the provisiofie ol the Main Markel Listing
Raguiramants of Bursa Securiliey,

Pleasa refer to the Clreutar to Shameholders daled B June 2013 for turther information.

v) P Renewnl of Sherw Buy-Back A
Tha proposed Ordinsry Resolulion 5, If peased, will sliow Ue Company 10 purchess s own shanes up o
10% of the lolal issued end paid-up capitsl of the Company by utillsing e funds siocsted which shall nol
excead the relained profil and [ or shars premium sccown! of the Company,

Plesse rofer 1o the Share Buy-Back Statement duted 8 June 2013 for further Informeation

Annual Raport 2012
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Corporate Information

BOARD QF DIRECTORS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

COMPANY BECRETARIES

REGISTERED OFFICE

CORPORATE OQFFICE

BHARE REBISTRAR

AUDITORS

PRINCIPAL BANKER

STOCK EXCHANGE LIETING

i Mr. Sl Chin Hock

Mr, Ang Kwes Teng
Mr.Sas Wan Sang
(Exsoutive Diractors)

Tusn Haji Azhar bin Nayan
(Mor=Indepandent Non-Exsculive Director)

Mr. Siow Kas Yen
Puan Adlllah bintl Ahmad Nordin
(Indspandent Non-Exacutive Direcion)

Me. SHow Kee Yen [Chairman)
Puan Adilleh binll Alimad Nordin

Tuan Hajl Azhar bin Nayan

Mr. Slew Kas Yan (Chalrman)
Puan Adilleh bint Ahmed Nordin
Tuan Hall Azhar bin Naysn

Puan Adlilah binti Anmad Nordin {Chalrparson)
Mr. Siow Kes Yen
Tuan Hajl Axhar bin Nayan

Me. Chua Siew Chuan (MAICEA OTTT6E9)
Ms. Sean Ne Teo (LS DODBOSB)

No 60-1, Jafan Lagenda 5, Taman | Lagenda,
75400 Madaka.
Tel: 608-2880210 Fax: 806-2880570

No, 8990, Kawasean Perindusinan Balu Bsrenidam,
Permgkat IV, 75350 Melaka, Malsysin.

Tel: G06-3365888 Fax; G06-3365899

Wabshs. s timapapr.com

Tricor Imvestor Services Sdn Bhd

Lavel 17, The Garders North Towes
Mid Vialloy Clty, Lingkaran Syod Pulra
50200 Myaly Lumpur

Tal: 603-22643883 Fmc 503-2282 1884
Emall: Is.enquirg@my, ricorglotsl com

Emst & Young (AF 0039)

Chartamd Aceauntants

Layel 18-1, Jaya 89, Tower B, 98 Jalan Tun Sd Lanang,
75100 Madaks.

Tal; 60E-Z2BAZI50 Fak 608-20328689

RHE Islamic Bank Barhad

Main Market of Bursa Malaysis
Sacuritios Bartyd
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Profile of Directors

Mr Sal Chin Hock

Ape

Natlorallty

Designation’ Poslilon in the Comparny
Dats of appolntment

Quadificalion

Whirk axparinncs

Directorship In other Public Companies
Securities holding in the Company and its subsidiarios .

Family relationship with any dirmetors and! or major
whareholders of the Company

Conflict of inlenssl wilh the Compeny

List of comviction for offances within the past 10 yeam

Mr Ang Kwea Tang

Age
Nationality

Degigralion [ Posibion in the Company

Diatn of appalntrmsnt

Cuniification

Work experience

Directorship In ofhar Publie Companios

Sacuritias holding In the Company and iis subsitisrins

64

. Malayitan

Executive Director

26 Jpnuary 2010

Bachelor ol Commerce [Nanyang Unlvarsity, Singagpora)
Menaging Dirsclor for ihe past 35 yeam

Nona

Direcl - B48.400 shures

Danmad — 22,205,788 shanss

: None

None
Nona

83

- Metlarysism

Exsculive Direcior
? Docembar 2002

: Directer of Omipager (nduslry (M) 3dn Bhd {since1895)

Golsis Synorgy Barhiad

* Direct - 10,000

; Doamed - 18,034,068 shares

Family refationship with any direclars wnd | or major
shamhokdams of the Company
Confilc! af Intaresl wilh he Company

Lint of comviction for offences wiihin the past 10 years -

Annual Report 2012
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Profile of Directors

Mr Sea Wan Seng

Agn

Mutionality

Casignation | Pesition In the Company
Diatn of appolntrnant

Cuajification

Wiork esiparanca

Directorship on other Public Companes
Socuriias halding In tha Company and s subsidianes -

: 6B

: Malaysian

* Exaculive Dimaclor

: 2 Dooembar 2002

! Bachelor of Commerca Degres froim MNanyang

Unhareily Singapor

: Director & Goneml Maneper of Carton Box Industrial

(M) Sdn Bhd {1880 io 1888), Dimclar of Omapaper
Indusiry (M) Sdn Bhd (1995 lo 2008, rejoined from
2010 to presenl); Director of Tripack Packaging (M)
Sdn Bhd (2004 lo 2008, rejoined ninca 2010),

. Nons

DCHrect - Ml

: Doomad - 18,634,688 sheros

Family relationship with any direcior and / or major
shiireholdem of the Compny

Conllict of imanasl with the Campany

List of Conviclion for affancas within the pasl 10 years .

Tuan Hajl Azhar bin Nayan

Age

Nafionaliy

Dasignation / Position in the Company
Date of appaoinimant

Chun|Ifiestion

Work exparience

Directomship nother Public Companies
EBacurities holding In the Company and s subsldieres ;

: Nonhe
. None

Nona

: 60
* Madaysine

Mon-Executive Direcior

: 2 Deonmbar 2002
* Dagran |n Bachalor of Sciance Accounmncy; MBA In

Finance, Member of Amercen Inslitivls of Cerfifled
Public Acocourtants

; Managemeni Consultent In Emsl & Whinmy, Audibcr

with Asthwr Andersen & Co Genaral Menager In
Lembaga Tabung Hajl (since 1688); Director of
Omapaper Industry (M) Sdn Bhd (present)

| Taf Indimines Barhad

Direct - 25,000 shames

+ Desmed - Nl

Family relationship with any directors and | or major
sharcholder of the Company

Confilct of inturest with the Company

Liet of comviction for offencas wilhin the pasl 10 yeams

t NG
- Mone

None

Annual Reporl 2012
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Profile of Directors

Mr Slow Kse Yen

Age .42

Natiannality * Malmynian

Designation / Position in the Company ; Independant Non-Exstulive Direcior

Deis of appointmant . 2 Decambar 2002

Cuslfization : Mambar of Malayslan Instituts of Aseoiintants Hanours
Degroe in Bachelor of Accountancy

Work experdance Audil Benlor In Arthur Anderean & Co. (1095-1084)
Audit Menngsr with Chin & Co, (2000-2001); Parinar of
KY Siow & Co. {since 2001)

Direcioruhip in ather Public Companias : Nana

Securites holding in the Company and s subsidiodes - Direct - 230, 500 shoros

| Daamnd - Nil
Family reiatisnahip with any directors and / or major
shereholders of the Company Mape
Confliat af Interesl with the Comparny - Napa

List of conviction for offences within the past 10 yaars | Nona

Puan Adillah binti Ahmad Neordin

Age ;44
Nutonality : Malaysinon
Dasignation! Position in the Company ; Indapandant Noa-Exaculhve Director
Dats of appaintmant : 2 Decambar 2002
Cualification : LL B (Honours)
Work axpeniance : Engligh Bar & Malavsian Bar (1083 &1884); Advorste &
Solicltor with Adillab A. Nordin (prasant)
Directarahip in other Public Companies ; Noma
Sequrites hokding in the Compamny and i Dirgct— 34,000 shums
subsiclades : Doormod — NI
Famity relstionship with any directors and/ or mador
shareholders of the Company : Mona
Comflict of interast with the Company : None

List of comviction for offences wilhin the past 10 years - Nons

Annual Report 2012
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Letter to Shareholders

On behal! of tha Board of Cimeclomns, I s with pleasura thil | presant o you Ihe Annual Report and Audiiad
Firiarcial Slatements of Omopape: Borbad for the year anded 37 Decomisor 20122

TUR VISION
To ba a lending company providing packsg|ng solufions.
OUR MISBION

To provide sinlw-of anl products snd qualily sordoss. To confinually dovalop customer relabonship by mosling
ihasir nasds and anhancing patnarhip.

PERFOAMANCE AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded @ marginal higher revenue of RM228 millon In the reporting year es compered lo @ RM228
millien In thr provicus year, The increase in revenus by 1.3% from the preceding yoar was malnly resulted from
higher demand of comugeiod boards and carion boxes.

Tha Greup had posled ned profits aflar texalion of RNT.28 millon for financial year anded 2012 as comparad (o
RM5.80 million In the comesponding year. Thin was malnly due to lowar cost of raw materals and Improvaed
operational aficiancy which has impmoved the profil mangin of the Group

PROSPECTS FOR 2013

The yoar 2013 continued o be challenging due o uncertamties in tho glebel ecomromic cutlook and higho:r
oparaiing costs which will antinue o walght on the sales revenug and prefil magin of the Group.

Tha Board will continua to monitor the Group's operations and will focus o strive for higher production and
oparaiing afficiency o anhance tha prafit margin in te challsnging business spvircamarnt,

CORPORATE BOCIAL RESPONBIBILITY

Thie CGroup s commitiad o e beltarmanl of employeaes: On humen capilal, developmenl stateyy focuses on
bullding individusl eccountabiify, mansgamen! leadership, capabililiss and competoncs. Core arsas of Imining
Inchide businaas Isadanihilp, paapia skills, businass manageman!, Rnancial Mmenagamant, sarvics qualty, nalsty at
work and technicsl shills.

APPRECIATION

The Boand of Direclors wishes o convey its apprecmtion mvd gratilude to the valued shareholders, bankers,
supplien and cusiomem for Ui unwovering soppord mnd feith in e,

Tha Board aiso wishes o lake this opporiunily 1o thank Iha managemant (sam and opemiionsl sinfls of the
Grouip for thalr contribution, dedication, commitimant and hard Wwork during the yasr and | would lke o drge the
management and sisffe lo continue giving their best (o the Group to (ake i1 to greater heighis.

| look forward io meeting sll of you &t the forthcaming Annual Gensmi Meating.

Thank you.

On bahalf of tha Boara,
Sal Chin Hock

Annual Aaport 2012
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Financial Highlights

In AM'000 (unlses otherwise steted)  FY 2008 FY 2005 FY 2010 FY 511 FY 2012
REVENUE 160 668 168,481 28817 225 888 229328
GROSS PROFIT 29,089 30,893 34,741 38,¢49 41,667
PROFTT AFTER TAX * 2,504 4 506 4 589 5,801 7,285
NA o 097 100,181 102 368 108,161 M6 17
MNAPER SHARE (Feht) .28 123 1.38 144 1.55
EFSBASIE{SEN]" 3.40 610 6.10 T ro o 80
* Altributabls o COwners of Parent
REVEMUE in FM'S00
WEYTE 250,000
B
WYR 1E0,800 '
MYR 100,000
WY 50,000
YR :
Fr 2008 FY Xl FY 2610 FY 2011 FY 2013
—@— FIVENUE

PROTTT AFTER TAX FROM YEAR 2008 = 3012
o RN Q00

WYRG,000 |
WYR&00D
MYR4.008 |
MYR 3000 |
WYR2000 |
MYR1,000 < e

MYRO - : il

Annual Aeport 2012




Financial Highlights

NA FROM YEAR 20082012
n R&TOO0

WYR 120,000 I—-""
MYR115000 | |
MYR110,000 | |
YR 105,000 |
MYR 100,000 |
MR 85,000 |~
MYTR 80,000 .|
MYR 85,000 '

o 2 & a8 ] 10 12
= EFS Baalc (sen)
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Corporate Governance Statement

Ther Boprd of Directoms ("the Boeard™) of Omapapsr Berchad recognirps and subscribai to the mporoncs of e
principles and meammendations sol out Intha Metoysian Codo on Corporsts Governmance 2012 "MCCGE 2012°),
The Board ls firmly commitied thet accountability snd trensparency a6t svary lovel of the arganisalion s assantial
In safeguarding essets, enhancing shareholders’ valua and mainlaining strong financial performanca

The Rosrd s plussed (o provide he lollowing stalsmant which oullines the main coperale govamance that has
bean n place Irougheut the Meencll year onded 31 Decembor 2012,

ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPUNSIBILITES
Clear Functions of the Board snd Managomernt

Tha Board s responsible for ovarsighl of the Company, Koy mattars mearved for (ho board's approval Indude
the folliowing:

Agproval of Mnancial resulls

Dividend pollcy

lzsunnoo of new sacurities

Anruiel business plan

Annual financlal budgst

Acquisition or disposal of matedtnl fixod aesols
Acguisition or disposal of group companios

To onsum the ellfecthv dischage of s Tunction and responsibiiios, he Board delegales some of tha Beand's
suthortios end discrefion on the Executive Directors, mpresenting the Managemant, as well as o propady
constituted Board Committees. The Boord Mambars, In camying oul their duthes and responsiblilies, ara finmly
commitied Io snsuring thal the highest slanderds of corporata governance and corporate conduct sm adhered
lo, In prder thal tho Company achioves strong finenclal porformence for eech fnoncisl yoer, and moms
impartanily dalivers long-term ond susialinable valus o stokaholdons

Ll L - & = & &

The Board Commitisos aro entrusied with specifio responsibiiiies o oversue the Company's affalrs, In
ascnomance with their respective Terms of Raferonces. Al erch Board mesling, minutes of the Boerd Commitiog
mariings gre presaniad 1o the Board. Tha respeciive Chalmman [ Cnairperson of thw Board Commitices will nlso
mapart i the Boerd on koy lwsuss delibaraied by the Boand Commitioes.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
a) Composition of tha Board

The Group s headed by an sffective Board with mixed knowlsdge, sxpartise and diverss academic
backgmund to sffeciively discharge (= stewardship respons/billlas in spearhsading e Group's growth
and fuirs dimecian.

The Board comprises stx (8) members of which throe (3) am Executive Directors, one (1) Ia
Hen-Indapendant Non-Emacitiva Dimeclor and two (2) am Independan| Non-Execulive Direcoms. Wilh the
compealion of tha Board, ORNA complias with the Bursa Malaysia Securities Barhad Maln Markat Listing
Ragquimmants ("L!stdng Rogummsnis") wilh regard fo the constitullon of the Board of Dieclors and the
requined mtio of Indspendant Dinsctons.
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Tha Boad compesilion s uppropriato In leems of its membership and skzn. The Board Is of the view el
the curran| mik of skits, exporioncs and nowledge ans wall e the equirkmant in e papor peckaging
nduslry, and elso professionels with diversa knowladpe In the srees of esecounting, logal and goneral
MENRGETTHRINL

Tha Inpepandant Mon-Execulive Direclors provide objeciive and [ndependenl judgamanl o ol
balance eadership of the Group es well e o sefeguard Imerest of the minoity shomholders and other
stakehoiders by ensuring the highes! slandand of conduct and Intogrity are maintalned by the Group. Tha
MNot-Indepandent Non-Execitive Dinclor conlibutss slgnificantly in erees such es policy and stralagy,
periormancy monforng as well o Improving govemancs and contmols

Prafile ol individusl Diractars are ssl ol in pages B o 10 of this Annual Repornt.

Cin of the recommandathons of the MCOG 2012 s that the lenee of an iIndopandent difecior should nat
oxcoad & cumulativa of ninel8) yeors Amonpst the Board mambers, Mr. Slow Koa Yen and Puan Adilinh
hintl Ahmad Nordin heve sanmd on iho Boerd for mora than ning(8) years. Pursuant (o Recommandation
3.3 of MCLCE 2012, and nohwithslanding thalr lang tenume In office, the Nomination Commiites end the
Board based an the review end assassment Is unanimous In s oplnfon thal thelr indepandence hava not
baen compromizad or mpialmd In eny way and they have met the Independancs guldelines as sot cul In
Chapter 1 of iha Lisling Raquiroments.

Tha Board, thoamforo, congldors tham o 8o indopendent gnd recommands that they ehould ba rotsinad as
Independant Non-Exscutive Direclors 1o the sharsholdans for this purposs ot tha fothcoming Elovanth
AGM

Dulies and Responeibiiities of the Board

Thes Board ia responsible for the ovemll corporate govemnncs of the Group, induding lts siratsglz plan,
ovarell menagament and businass performancs, management of principal rdsks and controla. The Board
s responsible for estehlishing corporate goals and providing the atrategic direction for the Comparty. The
Board alsg plays the crifical role In ensurng thet sound end prudent poficies and practices are in place ard
performs {ha oversight mie an the management of the Company's businpss.

The Board reservea cerain power for feall und delegotbs cerisin molinm, sudh as dey-to-day
manegemant of the Company i the Exscutive Dirsclors and the Managemen! Commiliee ("MC"). Such
detegalions are subject to sirict approving suthardly limfls. The MC comprises heads of departimants within
the Group,

The Board hes sigs delegaled ceraln responsibillies lo sevaral Board Commitioss such ag (he Audit

Commities, Nominetion Commilles and Remureralon Commitles which cpsrale within cleerly defired
t=rma of referencs,
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Company Sscratarios

The Company Secretardes amm msponsiie for ansuring the Board procedurss are followed, thal fhe
applicabls rules and regulations for the conduct of tha affalrs of the Board are compllad with and for all
matiam associaied with he mainienancs of the Bosrd ar otharwise required for la efficlant operation, The
Company Secrelares advise the Boand on issues reliling lo corpdrale govemidncs, compliahce wilh laws,
rules, procadures and regulstory requirements.

The Company Socretaries gtend and ensure thit ol Board meatings are propardy convenad, and thal
scoumie and proper reconds of the procsedings and resolutions pussed wre ke amd maintained | the
elalutory regisior of the Company.

Tha Coda of Ethics for Company Secratnries s ndogled and lhe Board ensuies hat tha Company
Sscretaries appointed have tha relsvant axpariences sno skiis,

Supply of Information

Al the Diracios sra notified of the Bosrd mesfings wihin sfilpulsied dmes pror io the meastings dote. Board
papsis together with the agends are circulated lo sl the Direciom prior o Board Meetings. This 1s to
ansurs hat fhe Dimctors are grven stifficiant me o read the Board papars bafore the Baard Maatings and
enable all Dirsctors o discuss the lssues o be mised at the meztngs as well az discharge thelr duties
approprimely,

Al the Direclors hive direcl sccess 0 the Senfor Mansgemnen) and the services of the Company

Sogvelaries, In addifon, \he Dimeclors mmy soek independon! professionsl sdvice sl tha Company's
snpens on specific sues to anable H 1o dechame their duliss in reletion ko matiers belng detiberatod.

Board Chartar

The Beard Charter 8 currenitly being drafied and will be posied on the Company’s websile after the Board's
appraval, In the counse of astablishing a board charer, the Board reccarizes the Impormnce to st oul the
koy values, principhes and elhos of e Company, es polices and eiralegy devolapmant ere baesd on lhesa
congiderstions. The Board Chaerter is sxpecled 9 include (he division of responsibilities and powers
babwoan the board and menagemant s wal! es the difersnl commiiiees ssiablished by the Board

Board Meelings
The Board masls querterdy o review lls guarady performances and discuss now strmtegles. Additional

mostings will be cailed when nocessary. During the financial yoar anded 31 Dacamber 2012, five (5)
measlings have basn hald and aflisndence af sach of iha Direciors ane as follows:-

Mamas of Directors Numbar of Masting Attendance
Ang Kwoe Tang 8/5
Sal Chin Hocsk &6
See Wan Seng Ei5
Azhar bin Noyan b
Show Kea Yen 6/5
Admah bintl Atvmad Nordin 55

In the nlerval between Boand meelings, lor exceplonal matlers requinng urgenl Boand decislons, Boards
approval are soughl via circular resclutions, which are allached with sufficient and relevant information
mequined for an inflormed decision W b made.
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Appelnimants lo tha Bcard and Re-slection of tha Dirsclors

In scoardancs with the Lisling Requlremonls end the Company's Arlcles of Assooialion, ol leasl
one-third (173) of the Directors or he number nearel 10 one-third (1/3], shall raling by rolalion #l sach
Annuisl Ganaml Maating and at laasl onca evary thres (3] yearm. The Directars retifing from effies shall
be aligible for re-alection by the sharshoidars,

Tha Directors who are sianding for m-slaction al the lorhcoming Elaventh AGM ol the Company o be
haid on 28 June 2013 afe s stated In the Notice of the Elaventh AGM

The Direclors chesrve the reccrunendstion of the MCCG 2012 thel they are required o netlly the
Chalrman before sccepling any new direcitrship and o indicale he Gime axpectad fo be spenl on e
new appaintment.

Directars Tralning

The ractors are mindfud that thay should mcalve conlinucus tralning in ordar 1o broaden thalr
perspoctives and egulp them with the necesssry sidlls o carry out their roles offectively as Directoms In
dizcharging thalr maponaibilities towsrds comparate gowamanca, apamtional and raguiaion ssiss

All he Directors sre briefed by the-Company Secramry on the Malaysian Code on Coporate Govemance
2012 during one of the Dimctorns’ mesling held (n year 20912, The following wre training [rograms,

seminan snd conferences allended by Direclom of the Company duiing the Mnancial year ended 31
Desomber 2012:

Training/ Coursas Attonded Name Of Diractor Date

{I} 2012 Corporats Fraud Tusn Ha|l Azhar Bin NayRn 206-27 Mar 2012
Cenferanca

(i} Warkshop on Tex Deductible Expermes
« Lmtrnt Developments & Praciical isaues Slow Kee Yan 27-28 Mar 2012

(i} SesiPractios In Imternal Tuan Hajl Azhar Bin MNayan 1817 Apr 2012
Auditing

{v) Saminar On THE LAW, THE PRACTICEAYDU  Slow Kea Yen 4 Bep 2012

(v} Nationsl Tax Seminer 2012 Siow Hiea Yan 8 Ocl 2012

(vl 2012 Nalional Confsrencs on Tuan Hajl Azdvar Bin Naysn 22-23 Oct 2012
Irtameal Audifing — Rislng Patontlal

{vl) Saminar COS0 The Tuan Hajl Azhar Bin Nayan T Mow 2012
Appiication Ay Businsas

{vil} Sriafing On Tha Malayslan Tuan Hajl Azhar Bin Nayan 8 Nov 2012
Coos On Corporals Govamancs

The Direclors will continee o participats in other raining programmes o keep abress! with lalsst
developmenl in the caplisl markels, relevent changas in lows and regulations and on corporats

malters, from lime to time. The Directors ane briefed by the Company Secrelarfes on letlars
and clreulars lasuad by Bursa Mataysin Secutities Berhad mt boand meating.

Baoard Commitiess

As par of ks afforts fo ensurs the effective discharge of Ms duties, the Bodnd has delegutad caraln
functions to caraln Committeas, namaly Audil Committes, Nominalion Cammittes and Remimeration
Commitine with each operaling within |is cleardy deline larma of refemnce. The Chairman of the varipus
Committesas will report 1o the Board the oulcame of the Commities meetings.
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The Board has estoblished the following Commillees fo =sais! the Board In execution of i
respansibillies:-

Audlt Commities

The compasition and terma of reference of the Audll Committes are detafiad in the Audt Commitites
Raport appearng in pages 26 to 29 of this Annuel Repan.

MNomination Committee

The Nomination Committes compriass (he following three (3) Non-Exscutive Dimaciors, two (2] of
whom ara Indaneriderrss

Siow Keé Yen {Chairman)
Addilial Bnl Ahmed Mordin (Membear)
Adhar bin Nayan (Membet)

The tarrne of reference of the Nomination Commiilee include:

= Ammuilly review the required mix of shdils and expavience and olher gualities, ncluding come
competancies which non-enescutive amd exscutive directors should heve,

«  Assoos on on oonusl bests, the affectivenoss of the Beard e 8 whole, the commitioos of (he
Board and for asssssing the contibulion of ssch individusl Direclor, including Independant
Mon-Executive Directors: All assessments and ovaluebions carmed out by the Nomination
Committee m the discharge of all i funclicng should be proparly doocumenisd.

« Bo entiled to the services of the Company Secrelory who must ensure thol all appoiniments ans
propedy made, thet all necassary information ls obilnined from Direclors, bodh fof e Compery's
own recoids and for the purposes of meating slatulory obligations, =a well ge obligallions srsing
From the Listing Reguirements or offwr reguletory reguinemants.

Racrulimant or Appolmmant of Direclors

The duties and responsibliffes of the Nomination Commities are a2 follows:

« To recommand candidelos for sl direclorship o the Bowrd of Directoru. n muoking ks
recommuendations, the Nominaton Committes would coneider tho candldates”;

= Skills, knowiledge, sxpertiss and axpeisnos,

= professionalism;

= integrity, and

* In tha casa of the candidates for the position of indepandent non-axecullve Direciors, the
MNomination Commillee would avaluals the candidaies’ abifily o dischargs sueh
respongibiliies / fundclions as axpeciad from indapandint non-execulive Direclors.

«  To considar, In making lis recommandations, candidatas for directiorahips propossd by tha Chial
Exacylive OfMcar and, within the bounds of practicshlity, by any olher sanlor sxscutive or any
Dirsetor or Sharmholdar,
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« To recarnmend 1o the Board of Direclers the nominsas 1o il the sests on the commitiees of the
Board.

»  Toagsess the effectiveness of the Board of Dineolors 2= o whole and each individuel Directors
commiliee of he Board, All gssessmenls and svalustons camied oul by the Mamination
Commitize In the discharge ol ul| ks funclions to be properly documenied,

«  Toact in lne with the directicns of the Board of Direciors.

+ To consider and mmmine such other motiers g the members of the Nominofion Commiltee
cansider appropiate.

Thia atandancs of Direclors whao are membars of Beard Committse during tha finandal year andsd
31 Dacambsr 2012 s sel oul below;

Director Dasignation Al it Momination Asmuneration
Commiites Commitiee Comimitios
Slow Koa Yon indepandent Non &5 " 1M
Eurcutive Direcior
Aukillgh bind Indapandsnt Non RS b1k n
Algmad Nard(n Exzeutlve Dirscter
Arhar bim Mon-indspandent &'s 1M i
Meyan Mon-Exacutive
Diracior
Gondar Divarsity

Thas Board s supportive of gendar divarafy in e boardmom as moommeandad by MCCG 2012
Praeanily, tem s ona(l) famals Direclor on the Beard of tha Company and tha Company confinuss
It promoda tha mprasentalion of woman n Lhe compasition of the Baard.

() Remuneration Commiiise

The Board has est up & Ramunamtion Committes comprises the follcwing three (3) Non-Exscutive
Directors, two [2) of whom sra Indapandat:-

Adiliah binti Abmad Nordln  (Chairpemson)
Siow Kes Yan (M)
Arhar bin Nayan (Mamber)

The e of refarance of the Remuneration Commites incluna:

* Reviow, nesess and recommend fo the Board of Direciors the emunomalion packeges of tha
mtasulive diectors In all farms, with othor indopandant professionnl sdvico or outside advics, I
NBCEESHNY,

= Ba entitied 1o the servioes of the Company Socretary who must armure thal all decisions meds on
e ramunisratian packagss of the executive direciors ba propary recordod ard minubed.
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Tha range of remunomtion recsived by the Directors for the finencial year endsd 31 Deocomber 2014 s
nat out in tha Naotes to ths Finanaial Stelamants.

Al Direciors ans pald meating atlowances for thalr atandancs al Boant and Board Commifies mssalings

I} Directors Ramuneration

The Compaiy shall ensuis ihe level snd meake-up of remunaimiion (8 sullicien! o afirsct and mtam the
Difectors needsd to run the Company succsssiully,. Currenlly, the Remunamion Commillss sssossss
ind Execulive Dirsclors’ remunerafion packages =0 as o mcommeéend (he Exaculive Dirsclors’
ramunaration packages fo the Bosrd for approval. Tha Exscutive Direciors abasll nbstaln fram
participating In tha discunslon with mespect to thalr mmumeration pacingas. Detalls of tha Direciors’
memurmralion for the financial year anded 3 Becembar 2012 ame disdossd In page 73 of this Annual
meport,

The Exacutive Direclors' emunerlion comprises basio salary, Diroclors’ lees and allowanoes. Other
cuslomary banafits io tha Grmoup am made avallably as appropriate Any salary reviews will talke inio
account marks! rales and the performanca of the ndvidual and the Group.

The Mon-Exscullve Directors’ remuneration comprises fees and allowsnces, Datsrmination of such
remuneration is balanced with their expeciad miles and reaponsibiiiliss. The Board mainiaing the currernl
remunemmition for each category of Direclors commensurale with thal adoptad by companies of simitar
standing, and is sufficient to attrect and retain Directors of high caliber.

The Bomrd has considered o disciosure of detalls of the remuneration of assh Direcior and 18 of tha
view thit lhe franspamency and sccountabliity espects of Corporate Governance s @pplicable to
Dirsctor's Remuneraifion e appropristely sarved by tha "band disslosurs” as mequirsd by tha Listing
Roguiomaonls,

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

a} Compllence with Applicable Fimancial Reporting Standards

The Boerd tekes responsibllity o present @ balanced, clear snd meaningful repont on the Group's
fMnaneial positions end business prospects o s shareholders, iImvestors and tha regulstary authorfifes vis

Urmely relegse of quuitety mporls, annua! reports Bnd regully anncuncemenls on maleral butiness
e,

The guarterly results and arnual financil stelements ere oviewsd by the Audll Committea end
recommandad o the Board for approval bofors relaasing to the public, via Bursa LINK. The Audil
Committes plso reviews e appropriatanass of tha Company's end Group’s accounting policles and the
chenges 1o thaea policies as wall &3 ansures the fnancial stalaments ars drawn up In Accordanca with
tha provisions of the Companles Acd, 1045 and spplieable sccaunting standards.

bl Directors' Rosponaihillty Stalement

The Direclom s responaible for iaking reasoneble aleps 10 enaume the malntenance of proper
accounting und other records and Intomsl conlreld, e application of eppropdale accounting policles and
the ssfeguerding of assets of the Group.

The Board of Direclors s regulred 10 ensure thal the finandal statements for each fnanclal yeer ame
propery deawn Up In accordanes with the previslens of the Companlas Act, 1965 and applicabla Finaneial
Raporting Standards In Maldynla 2o as fo give a true and fair view of the stata ol affalrs of tha Group and
of the Company as at tha snd of tha Mnanclal year end and of the mesuits and caah Nows of the Grouap
and of the Company for tha finandal yea! then andad,
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Intarnal Centrel

The Board mcknowledges s overall responaibility lor mathlaining & sound systam of Intemal coniml
saleguerd sharsholders' Investmant and tha Croup's ssasts, This Includes ansurdng the review of the
adoquacy and integrity of the syetem of Internal contrel In mansging the principal rlsks of the Group,

The Staterment on Risk Management and Inlemul Control made n parsusncs of Chapler 16.28(b) of the
Listing Roquiremants is sol out in pages 30 to 32 of this Annual Report.

Assassmaent of Sultabliity and Indapandancs of Extamal Auditors

Tha Audll Commnlilss undafiakes sn annual sesessmant of the suftabliity ang Independenca of the
axiamal audiions. |1 & the policy of e Audlt Commiltisa (o masl wWith tha axtamsal auditons af least twice &
ymar lo disciss thalr audit plan, audit findings and the Company’s financial sttsmants. At least one of
thene mestings |3 held without the presence of the Execuiive Directom and the Munagement The Audit
Committes also ments with lhe extemal sudiiors additionally whenever it deems necessany. In addition,
the exiemal auditors are invited to attend the Annusl General Mesting of the Company and are avallable
o andwel nhatehokien' queslcns on e condud] of the stalutory sudil &nd the preparstion and contonls
aof halr audll repart.

intamal Audll Funcitlon

The Group has cutsourced ils Intormml Awdil to assist e Audil Committes in (he dischorgo of s dutise
and responmibiifies. Tne Intamal Audit function [nchides esvalustion of the prooassas by which significant
rizks are ideniified, sespssed and managed, Such audin G canfed out o ersurs Inslfuled controls am
approprists, effectively applled and within acceptable rfsk axposuras consistant with the Group's risk
managemarnt policy.

The toin| cost incumed was RM28 22

ENSURE TIMELY AND HIGH QUALITY DISCLOBURE

Corpomis Meclosure Polley

The Company recognises (ho volue of lensparenl. conalstent and cohorent communications with
imsalment communily consistént with commercial confidentiality end regulalory. comsideritions. Thie
Company alms lo bulld leng-teim relafionshipgs with shareholders and polenfial Investors hrough
appioprisls channeh: for (hs manngarnen| fnd dinelogns of Information,

Thass investors am provided with sufficlent businass, opemations and financial information an e Group
e onabie tham o maks informed Investman! declsions,

The Company’s webslils has & “Contact Us" section where sharcholders and polential investors may
direct thelr enquiries on the Company. The Campany's cuslomer services leim will endeavour o reply 1o
these querss In the shornal peasible Ume.

Lavarage on Infarmutien Technelogy for Effeciive Dissamination of Informatian

The Companys webshie provides sl relevant information on the Comgpany end s accessibis by |he
public. The Inveslor Relations seclien enhahces e Inveutor Relations funiction by Including analys|
reponls, all announcements mude by the Company, annuil meporis as well az the comporile and

govermance aliuciure of the Compiny.
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The announcement of the guartery Tinoneial resulls iz also made vis Bursa LINK immedinlaly afler the
Boand's eporoval. This f8 importan] in enmuring equul and {air sccess o mformotion by the invesiing
public,

STRENGTHEN RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN COMPANY AND SHAREHOLDERS

Encourage Shoreholder Participation at General Meatings

The Company provides informeition I the shareholdams with regard to, amongst others, detalls of tha
Annual Goneral Mesting, their enlidsment to attond (he Annunl General Meeling, tha rght o appoint &
proxy and alen the quaiificstons of a proxy

To furlhar promola pariclpstion of mambars through proglaa), the Campany have amendad |l Articlas
of Asaodation lo include apleilly he nght of praxies o spealk al geneml messtings, o dlliow & membar
who b an axempt authordssd nominss 1o appolnl mulipls proxies for ssch omnibus account It holds and
axnrpanly disaliow any reslichon on prony's-qualification,

Encoursgn Poll Voting

Thata will nol ba any subataniiw mmealullons o ba pul fordh shamsholdes' agproval al the Todbeoming
Annual Gansml Meoting. Nevoribelass, (ha Company would conducd pall voling i damandad by
aharshotdem ot (e ganaral mesting.

Effective Communication And Proacthn Engagnmant

In maintaining ha commiiman| to sffective commiinicalion with sharsholders, the Group adopin the
practics of comprahanabs, timaly and eantinulng disciosures of Informetion in lis sharehaldars as wall a8
Io the general inveating puldlo. The practcs of disclasure of Informadion s not jus! astasblishad in comply
with tha requiremanis af the Linfing Requimmants pardaining to confinuing dissloneres, || stes adopta Tha
beet praciices as recommendad in s MCCG 2012 with regerd o atrengthaning angagameanl and
communication with sharsholdera. Whars posaible and epplicable, e Group also provides additional
disciosums of informotion on & voluntary basis. Tha Group balieves thol conslsiently maintaining & high
hvel of disclosure and sdensive communication wilh s shamsholders in wital to shamsholdars and
imvasiars (0 maks informad investmant dacsions,

Tha Annual Repod is ihe main channel of communicalion batwaan Ihe Company and fis slakaholders,
The Annual Repor communicates comprahansiva informalion of the financial results and sciivities
undariaken by Ihe Group. AR b lisled issusr, tha conlanis and discleburs feguiramants af (ha annual

el and Aleo governed by the Listing Raquiramanta.

Angthar kay avanue of communication with I8 ahamholdéers 18 1hé Companys Annusl Ganaml Mesting,
which provides & useful forum for shamhoidens 10 angage dinsctly with tha Company's Dineclors, During
iha ganarsl masling, shamboldams ara & [ibefdy 10 reiss quasliona or saek dailicalien on 1he Bgenda
i of This ganaral meating om Ihs Company’s Diecion.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

Litilisation of Procaads
The Company did not implemant any fund ralsing exercise during the financlal year.

Share Buy-Back

During the financlal year, the Comgaany purchased 1,027,045 s [ssusd and peid-up share capital rom the
open market @! an Bverage price of RMO.474 per share. The share purchased are being held as treasury
shares In stoordance with Section 67A of the Companizs Act 1885,

Purchasa price par
ahare
Maonth No. of Lowent Highest Avernge Toinl
shnras coul par cost *
purchased sharo *
RM RM RM RM
Janary 2012 - - - - -
Fabruary 2012 - - - - -
March 2012 = > = & %
Apdll 2012 - ; - 2 4
May 2012 - - - - -
Juna 3012 - - - - -
July 2012 - - - - -
| August 2012 = 2 - . x
Saptembor 2012 276,845 0460 0A7S 0470 458, 564
October 2012 - - - - -
Novambar 2012 - - - - -
December 2012 50,100 0.550 0.550 0.550 27,555
E‘L FoR 1,027,045 0480 0.550 D474 487119

*  Exviuding lmnanction casts,
Subsaqueni io 31 Decembar 2012, thers wem sharn buy-backs of 6,000 ardinary shares from tha
opan markst on 3 April 2013 for fobal nel congiderafion of RMZ,B00.00. Az & maull, & balance of
1,032,045 erdinary shares wore notained es treasury shams on 3 Apdl 2013
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Optlona, Warranis or Convertiblie Sscuritien

Tha Company did nol lssua eny options, warrnnls or senvertible sscuritiss durting (he finanglal year andod 31
December 2012

Daposltory Recalpt Programme
The Company did nol sponsor eny deposiiony recelpl programme during the financial year,

Banctions and/ or Pannities
Thers wers no sanciions ar malerisl psnallies impased oa the Company and e subsidinties, Dinatoe or
manegompn! by (he miaven] regulstory bodles durdng the Timnclil yoar ended 39 Decambar 2012,

Varlance In Results

Thare wem no matedal varience batwean he resuita of the financlal year and the unaudited results previcusly
atnouncad. The company did not meke any relsasa on the proflt estimate, forecast or projeciions for the
financlal year.

Mon-sudH foes
Durirg the fnancisl year, there were no non-audit fees pald by the Company ond (s subsidiaties o the
Company's exiomal aodilors or s firm &nd s afMlliales &5 professiom] fioa.

Profil Guaraniss
Tha Company did not pivis any profit guarantsas during the Nirmncial pear,

Kutorial Contracts
During the financinl yesdr, thers ware no moterdal contracts entered into by the Campany or ks subsidiates,
Invelving Cirectors’ and major sharsholders interesl

Contracts Relating to Loans

Thete were no malesal contracts ralaling fo loans by Ihe Company lwolving Diretlors and majoer
shareholdens

Recurment Related Party Tronsactions of a Revenus or Trading Matura (RRPT)

Tha breakdown of tha aggregats vaiue of the RAPT of a revenus or rading nature conductad purmuant lo tha
Froposad Renewal of the Exiating Shareholders’ Mandate during the financlal year ended 31 Bscambaer 2012
ano a3 follows:
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Aggragate
valua of
Namo of transactiona
Relaled Partion Nature of RRPT Ri'Ho0
Parfect Food Manufactunng (M) Sdn Bhd * Saiea of comugatad 4,099
carton boxes by OIS8
Greatbrand Food Industrias Sdan Bha * Sales of comugatsd 1,412
cRMon boxas oy 0158

*Companias in which Sai Chin Hock, 4 director and substantial sharehcider, hae remnel

The Compary ks seaking lis shnreholders” approval on RRPT of a evenue or tmding nakure 10 be enterad by the
Company's subsidiary companies with related parties In ine ordinary coursa of business in the forhcaming
AGM. Dstalls of ina tranasctiorm ara fumizshad In the Circular’ Siatamants to Sharaholdars, which bn distribuisd
logathar with the Annusl Ropad
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Audit Committee Report

MEMEERSHIP

The members of the Audil Commifies and dotills of attendance al the Aud|l Commitse Meeling during the
firamicial yenr ended 31 December 2012, whers a iolal of fve (B) meatings were held, are as follows:-

Narme Duaignation Number of Meellng Attsnded
Siow Kee Yen [Chalnmian) Independent Non-Exetulive Direclor =]

Adillah bintl Ahmad Nordin Intepandent Non-Exesutive Director 55

Aztwr bin Nayan Non-Indepandon| Non-Exsoulive Dimctor &5

TERMS OF REFERENCE

Camposition &f mambars

The Board shall appoint the Audil Committse members from amongsl themsalves, comprising no fewer than
Wrea [3) non-executive direciots. Tha mijorily of The Audit Commillee membears shall be Independen! dineclors,

I ths reapect, the Board mdopts ihe definlion of “indepondent direcior” a3 defined under the Listing
Reguirements of Bures Malaysla Securllics Berhad ("Burea Securilies®),

No eilemale director of the Bourd shall be appoiiled as & member of the Audl Cammilles,

The tarm of office und parformance of the Audit Commitine and sach of its mambore shol be reviewed by the
Board &1 |sasl once overy (hres (3} years to delomine whether such Audil Committee and mambam have
carmied out thelr duties in socordance with their terms of refemence,

Mr Siow Koo Yen maets the requiremanls of parsgraph 165.08{c){|) whora ho |3 B Chariomd Accountannt and o
mambsr of the Metayeian Institute of Aocountant

Retiromant and resignation

Ifa msmber of he Audit Committes rasigns, diss, or for any mason osasas 1 s a rmambar with the rasal that
the number of mambars ls reduced belaw thraa (3), the Baard shall within thres (3) monthe of tha avent appeint
such numbar of the new members as may ba raguired o M he vacancy,

Chalrman

Tha mambers of Ba Audt Commites ahall elect a Chalrman from amongs! thelr numbar who shall ba an
indapandent oo

In the absence of the Chaimman of the Audit Committes, lhe cther mambers of the Audil Committes shall
smangel themselves slacl & Chalrman whe mus! be independsnl director to chalr the mesling,

Secretary

The Compuryy Secretury shall be the Secretury of the Audit Cormmittes und &3 8 reporing procedure, [he
Minules shall be crolsted Lo 6l imembers of he Boarnd.
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Moating

The Audil Committee ahnll mesd regularly, with due nolcs of |esues 1o be discussed, and shall record s
conclusions in discharging lls dullas and responaibiitiE=a. In addifon, e Chalmmnn meay call for eddilional
rrsetings al any Ume 6t the Cheiman's disoelion.

Upon the request of the extemal suditor, the Chalmin of the Audil Committes shall convene & meeling of the
Audit Commities o consider any matiar the exiormal sudior ballovas should ba brought o 1he altantion of tha
diresinrs or shamholdors

Motica of Audit Commitioe meslings shall be glven lo all the Audit Cammiliea membars uniess tha Audit
Commiites walvas such mguiremeant.

The Chaimman of ha Audlt Commites shall Bngags on A confinuaus Basis With safiar maNagamant, such as iha
Chalmnan, the Chisf Exactiiive Officar, tha Finanos Director, the haad of intamal axidit and the sxternal sgditoms
In ordar to b kept Informad of mattars affecting the Company.

The: head of intemzl sudit and & represantative of the edsmal suditons should normally attend meetings. Cifar
Board mambers and amployeas may allena meatings upon ihe invilation of Me Audlt Commiites, Howaver, ina
Audit Commillne ahall meeat with the sxiemal audilorn withoul execiive Board membem oreessnt of least bylos
a yoear and whennvar nocessary.

Quagtions adsing &l arny meeling of the Audll Commitlee shall be declded by a majoifty of voles of the
mambers present, and In the case of equality of voles, the Chalmman of the Audk Commites shall have a
second or casting voie.

Objectives

The principal chisctives of he Audl Committes ars o assist tha Board In dischaming s statulory duties and
responsibilitos mlsfing o sccounting and reporiing prastices of the holding compeny end eoch af i
subsidiaries. In sgdition, the Audil Commitioo shell:

{a}  ovaluais lhe qualty of tha audlis parformad by tho inlemal and sxtemal audions;

{£}] provide sssurancs that tha Rnanclal information presanted by managameant 2 relsvant, rellabls and Ymaly;
{¢) owmas compliance wih lows and eguintions and cbeananca ola propar cods of conduct; and

{d}  delermine the qualiy, adequacy 8nd effectiveness of ihe Group'a contd snvironment.
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Audit Committee Report

Authorlty

The Audil Commitiee ahall, n ascordance with & procedure Is be delermined by the Board and al the
amaponsa of tha Company,

(8}

(8]

{ch

{d)

(o)

howes sxplicil aubodty to Inwesligats any medsrwithin s e of misnncs, the mesurcss o do 8o, 8nd
full access lo (nformation. All emplayéss shall be direcled 1o co-operate as raguested bymem-
bers of tha Audit Commites.

hove Full and unlimited! urrostricled oosess o all Information gnd documonis/resourceas which are
rcquired to parfomm ita duties as wall as to the intemal and sxiemal auditers and senior mansgsment of
e Company and Group

oblsin independent professionnl or other edvice and 1o invitle oulsders with relovenl axperence o
attend, (| necassary,

have dirsct communicalion channals with the sxiemal audilors: snd permonis) carrying out tha Interral
Budil funclion o activity (If eny).

whare the Audit Commillee is of the view thal (he mafter mported by il lo the Bosrd nas not bean
satmfaciorly msolved resuing In 8 bresch of the Linling Regquiremants, the Audit Commilites aball
prom ply mpor such maller o Burse Secuiilies.

Dutios and Responsibilities

The dulivs and responsibllities of the Audil Commities arg as follows:-

(@)
(b}

(e}
(d)

()

{n
(@)

To considar e appolniment of the esdemal audion, e audl fee and any question of msignation of dismisal;

To discuss with the sxiemal sudlior before he audh coimmences, [ nafurs and ecops of the sudll, and ensune
e-ondfination whaem mome than one audi firm (s involved:

To revienw with e axtemal sudior bis svalustion of He systom of itenes controls and his sudiiropon;
To review the quertery ond yearand lnancy| atstements of e Boand, focusing parbioulardy on -

- amy change in accouning policies and practices;

+  mignificant adilixtments artsing from the audit

+  the golng conoem assumption; and

»  oompisnce with accounting standards and other legal requirements

T discuisa probioms srd reservalions arfsing from e inbesm and Foel sudle, snd any mater S audior ey
wish o discuss (In the absancs of managamant, whens necsssnarny):

To vl tha extsmal audiors managemant lsther and managemant' s meponss;
To do tha foliowing, in melaton o the intemal audi function:-

« moview lho adeguocy of (he seope, functions and resources of tha intornal sudil funclan, and Ut
it has the necessary authority o camy oul its work,
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)

0

)
(k)

0]

= review the inlemol audl programme end resulls of the Inlemal oudll process and, whem
nacassary, snmire that appropriate actionn ars faksn on Iha recommandations of 1ha intarnml
audil funcllen;

« review any approisal of assessment of the performance of members of the intermel ewdit fundtion;

= approve any appointment or termination of sanlor stafl members of lhe internal audit function;
and

+ take cognirance of mesignations of Intamal sudit staff membears and provide the resigningstatt
member sn oppartunity 1o submit his reesans for resigning.

Ta consider any reinied parly imnssctions and confiicd of (nleresl situstion thet may ahdse within the
Company ar Group Including any transaction, procedurs or coursa of conducl thal ralses questicns of

muenagement integrily;

Ta report e findings on the inencial and manegemen! performance, snd olher metersl matiors (o tho
Board,

To conskder tha major findings of intemal investigations and management's Bseponss;

To verfly the aliccation of employess’ shaiw oplion schemes {("ESO3") In complience wilh the oriteria as
lipuloted in the by-lows of ESOS of the Company, I amy:

To detarmine the remit of the intema! sudit function;

{m} To consider olhsr iopica as defined by the Botrd: and

(n)

To contider apd exmmine such other mauliem as (he Audl Commites considams approprinie.

ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE DURING THE YEAR

The Audit Committes in ampowened o camy oul the following dities dufing the financial year under review in
accordance with ita term of reference

(a}

(6)
{c)
()

Reviewsd the extermusl sudilom’ scope of work and audil plane for the yoar. Priod 0 lhe sudit,
represanielives from the extemal sudirs presenisd thelr audl strmlegy and plan,

Raviewsd willh the axtemal audticnm, major Edues orising from this aidl,
Raviewnd tha Gmup's Intermel audi plan.

Reviewed the intermal audil reports. The Audit Commilles was briefed on the audh reports lssusd and on
the lssues ratsed by the Intemal Audiora on vanous sapeciz of the sysism In oparation, practices and
procadures and Inlemal controla. Spaclal notics was taken of signifieant laaues raised In the sudlt reports
and thal sdequala comaciive sctons had besn laksn by he Oparaling Managemant fo racify the
winaknnsqas.
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Statement On Risk Management And
Internal Control

INTRODUCTION

Pumsuinl o patagraph 15.26{b) and Praclice Nole B of the Bursa Maldysia Securilies Berhied Main Markst
Listing Requirements in relation lo requirement 10 prepere slatsmant aboul he slale of inlemal conlral of the
linled suar a8 & group, snd as gulded by the Sislement on Risk Managemen] and Inteimal Cortrel. Guidelines
for Direclors of Usled lesusns (“the Guidelines®), the Board is pleased lo presan! the sialerment on the siate of
tha risk management and Intemal controls of the Group Tor the NMndncial vear anded 31 Decomber 2012,

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Dimectors {"the Board®) aMrms e overall respormibility for maintaining a sound rek management
and Inlernal control syslem and for reviewing thelr sdoquacy snd elfectiveness so as lo safeguard all Its
giakehoidera’ Inlarests and prelecting |he Group's sasals The sysiem of intemal contraly covers Inler-alla, rigk
Besessmant &8 well as Tnandal, operational, envirenmantal and campllance conlrols, However, In visw of ha
limitations thel sre inherenl In any syatem of intemal controls, the system of intamal controls ts designed o
manage, miher than (o eliminats, (he rak of failune to achisve the Group's businsas objeciives. Accordingly, the
gystem of Intemal controls can only provide reasonable snd nol absolute msaurance against maledsl
misatatamant of losses and raud

RIBK MANAGEMENT

The Bcard maintains en on-going commitmeni for ideniifying, evaluaiing and managing significant risks faced
by the Group during the finendal year under raview. The Board had put in place sk managemant and Inlarmal
canirol syslem in order lo manage key bisiness risks Tased by the Group adoquamely and effeclively. The
reaponsbiily for the Identilcation, evaluation snd manasgoment of the key business risk delogsisd o the
Exacuthve Board and Sentor Managemsant

The Group's Fisk Managemuni is embadded Into kay processes al all level of organisalion atruclure whamby
respeciive head of deparimanis are delegated with the responsibliily to confimsously idenilly, evaluate and
manags the adeling and amarging fska, resulling from shanges lo Intemal and extemal smvionment, faced by
tho Group undar thair scope of responaibility by formuialing and Implemeniing edequale intomal conbrol lo
minimine tha risk exposurs Ideniifiad.

The Exscutive Directors and Senlor Management manage kay business risks Taced by the Group through
constanl communicalion amang themaeives and with reapective head of depariments during dally managemeni
of opemation and throlgh scheduled management mestings with changes In the key business ks faced by the
Group or ememgence of new key business rsks are highlighied o the Executive Direclors end Senler
Managamen! for dellberation and decision making. Ovring meetings of Boamd of Directors, the Executive
Directors and Senlar Managamant will bring up 1o tha sitention of the Board of changes o exisling key Business
rizka and emaming key business risks snd thelr relevant mitigation astion plans for the Board 1o assens the
stequacy and effectiveness of such acllon plans, in line with the group's risk appetite and sirategic objectives.

The above process hes been practiced by the Group for the financlal yesr upder review 2nd up to the dale of
spproval of (his statement,
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Statement On Risk Management And
Internal Control

INTERMAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Tha Key fealures of the Group's Inlemal conltrol syslam ars doscribed balow;

Board Commimeas (.6, Audlt Commitas, Remunarstion Committes and Nomination Committes) bang
aslabiisned To camy out dulles and respons!Diites delegated by the Boam, govemed oy wiitten tems of
rAlarance;

= Meatings of Board of Direclomn and respsctive Board Comimilless ans camied oul on schaduled basis 1o

1eview the pardormance of the Group, from Inanclal gnd opamtion! perepective, and lo carry oul |is
Niduciary dulies and responsibliiies. Potential business stretegies proposed by the Exacutive Directors for
the Boand's roview and epproval, after Wking into dsk consldemtion and responges;

Clearly dafined and structured Nnes of reporiing and msponsibilly for koy business unlisfdeparimoents
wilhin tha Group;

Jobs descriptions am established and annual performance appraisal ars performed for key posillons within
the Group In order lo ansure employsss am aquipped with misvant knowledge and skills requimd to
parfarm (hair duties and reaponaibliias diiganily and afectively;

Foligies and standard opemiing procedurss to regulnle kay processos in complignco wilh Intemabona
Oganisation for Stlendandisation ("800 carfcathon;

Aoguiar managamant mesalings, supporied by comprahanaive opemabion mpors prepamd by meespociie
doparhrenis mnd key indicators, o assess lhe Group's pedformance and rinks for formulation and

Implementaticn of mitigating coniols; and

» Executive Directors’ dose and diredt involvement in opembicns, regular reviews of opembional detn

including production, and marketing and financial data,

INTERMAL AUDIT

The Gmup rolies on Intermal sudll mechaniems i provids the management with the required level of asaiimnos
ihal lts business ls opersiing edequatnly and effactively in order 1o provide ressonable assuranca thot the
business objeciives of {he Group are achismbls.

The Groug's intamal audit function is culsourced to an independant professional firm who provides the Audil
Commitiee with much of the assurancs || requires regarding the adequacy and integrity of the Group's sysism
of Intamal control. The outsourced |ntemal sudht function reparts funclionally o Audil Commbiise #nd
udminiatrafively 1o the Executive Dimcior.
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The oultsourced Internal audil fundlion edopla & dsk besed sporcach for priodtisalion of intsmol eudil scivities;
with consultntion with the Exocuiiva Direclor; for Audli Commities's neview end opprovel. Regulor mismel sudit
mviews gro performed basad on the inlemal swdf plen spproved by Awdil Commilties and, upon the complation
of tha Intenal oudil work, tha intemal audil reporis ere presanted lo the Audit Commiltee during its mealings.
During {ha presentalion, the remal sudit fndings, s polential rels end ecommendalivne g5 wall ax
rmanagerrenl revponse and aolion plens ere preserted and duliversted, Updats on the siotus of aclion plans &=
identified in the provicus inlemol sudil repods were alse pesented durng the frondal yoer under eview for
Audil Committes to ensure eclion pluns ame implamonted to sddress tho ndividusl rsks sssocinled wilh tha
lindings. Durng Ihe fnancial year under reviow, tha oculsourced inkemal audil funcbon oonducted two (2) intamal
aufit oycies end mported of the sams o the Audit Commitiss par approved intome! sudil plan end subsaguant
manepaman requas! aparovad by Audit Cormmiltes

in ntidition lo the nbove, for he purpess of compliance with IS0 8001 2008 Quallty Menageman! Syelams,
iritsmml quakty sudits ano caried out by in-houes Indepondeant personnel end survellluncs audit is conduatad by
nn indepandon] cortificalion body to provide asstrancs of comphnnce with satebiizhed 130 procedures

ASSURAMCE PROVIDED BY EXECUTIVE DIRECTORSE

Dwring the mealing of Board of the Diredlors during the finendl yasr undar reviow, the performencs of tha
Group worn reviewed end dalfbamilad by the Board, including, bul not Imiisd (o, the adeguacy and effecliveness
of rigk mensgemant and intarmal control syateam in miation (0 the sirsetepls oblectives of tha Group,

Through thaas board meslings, Sxseutive Dirscors, boing e colisative body responsibls for the satting amd
achigvoman of e tompamis chjecthves and for the cbaorvanse of momgement authorilies o8 well as fnanats!
nffelrs mmnegamarnd, provided the Board with the confirmetion of sdequacy and effoclivenass of cysiem of
imtermal controls, in matodal eepects, on potontal rsks expoaums delibormted during such mestings

In response to the Paragraph 42 of the Guidalines, the Board undarinkes lo sesk assurance from Exncutive
Dirotioms on the adequacy and effacihvness of dek managemant &nd Indemal contml system of ths Group on
anrtun! bashe during he Anancial yoar endlng 37 Decomber 2013,

Pursuant i peragraph 15.23 of the Burss Maliynls Securitios Bartod Main Mariml Listing Requlromants, e
oxiomal audifors hove maviewsd this Stalement for inclusion in e Annusl Repor of the Goup for the yesar
endad 31 December 2012 and reparted lo (he Board that noibing hes come 1o thelr eltention thet caused tham
bo bealleve that the statement is Insonsistont with el understanding of the procesyas adopled by the Board in
raviewing the sdeguecy amd elfectiveness of De syslems of risk managament and intemal conbroiy,

CONCLUSION

Thie Board is of the view that he exdeting rek mansgement end imtsmal control sysbem pul in place is operating
eatiafactordly o sfeguard the interest of the sluksholders and the Group's assaets, basad on the exdeding nature
of business und scale of cpemations of Ue Group, The Board recognises the need Tor the risk mansgement and
intermatl contrel system o be sublected lo continuous review in liie with the growth of the Group &nd the Board
i commilled lowards shifving fof corlinuous Improvements i turther enhancs e Group's ek management
and fnbermal control system.
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Directors’ Report

The direcles have pleasuro In presanting thelr report together with the audited finencial statements of the Group
asnd of tha Campany for the finendal vear endad 31 December 2012,

Principal sctiviies

Tha princpel activities of the Company are Investmanl holding and provision of menagement sorvices, The
principal activiies of the subskdiartes are manufacturing and salo of comugated beards and carlon boxes.

Thume have baon no significant changes In the nalum of these principel activities during the financlal year.

Results
Group Company
RNPO00 AM'000
Profit, net of tax, attributable to; 7.285 5,354
Owners of the pareni 160 =
Non-contralling interast 7,445 5,354

Thers were no material ransfars to or from reserves or provisions dudng the financlal year othor than as
disciosad In the financlal statements.

In tha opinion of the directors, the resuls of the operations of the Group and of tha Company during tha finenclal
year wero not substantially sffected by any lem, transaction or evenl of @ material and unusual nature,

Dividend

Mo dividend has beean pald or declared by the Company sinca the end of the previous fnanclal year. Tha
directors do not recommaend the paymant of any dividend for the cumant financlal yaar,

Directors

Tha namas of ihe declors of iha Company In affice since the date of the last mport and al the date of this report
o

Sal Chin Hock

Spa Wan Seng

Ang Kwoa Tang

Slow Kaa Yan

Tuan Hajl Azhar bin Nayan
Adlilah birdl Ahmad hardin
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Directors’ benefits

Meiiher at the end of the financlal yesr, nor al any lima during that year, did there subsisl eny arangemeani o
which the Company was a parly, whenaby the direstors might scquire banafits by means of scqulsition of shares
In or debanturea of tha Campany or any ether body carporaie.

Since the end of tha previous Minancinl year, no direcior has recelved or becoma enlilled io recelve a banelt
(other than bonefits included In the aggregale amount of emolumenis moalved or due and receivable by the
diractors or tho Mixed salary of a ful-ime employse of the Company &8s shown in Nota 10 to the finandal
siaizmaenis) by reason of a conlmet made by Ihe Company or a relaled corporation with any diresior or with a
firm of which he ls & member, or with & company in which he has a subsiantial financlsl inlerest excepl ks
disclosed in Nota 31 o the financial statamants.

Directora’ Intarasia

Accarding to the register of direciors’ shareholdings. the interests of directors (n office at the end of the finandlal
year in shares in the Company and s related comporations during the financlal year wers as follows:

Mumber of ordinary shares of RM1 sach

11202 Acquired Sold 31122012
Direct Intereat
Sal Chin Hock 846,400 - - B46,400
Ang Kwee Teng 10,000 = = 10,000
Siow Hao Yen 230,500 = - 230,500
Tuan Hajl Azhar bin Nayan 25,000 3 % 25,000
Adiliah Binti Ahmad Nordin 34,000 = 5 34,000
Indiract interest
Sal Chin Hock 22,305,798 - - 22,305,768
Ang Kweoe Teng 18,634 Bag = . 18,824,888
‘Ses Wan Sang 18,634 888 > ¢ 18,634 588

Directors’ Interests (continued)

Sa| Chin Hock, Ang Kwes Tang and See Wan Sang, by virtue of their interests In shares in the Company, are
glno desmed interested in shares In all the Company's subsidiaries to the exient thal the Company hes an
Intarest

Other statutory Information

(s} Baforo the stalemanis of comprehensive Incoma and the stalemants of finnncisl posl ton of the Group and
of the Company wers made oul, the direclors ook reastiable sleps:

(1) io ascartain that proper action hed been taken In relation to the writing off of bad debts and the

maiing of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themssivas that all known bad debis had been
written off and thet edequele provision had been made for doubtul debts; and
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Directors’ Report

Othar statulory Infarmation (centinuad)

(b}

()

(d)

(&)

(i) toansurs that any curtenl assels which wese uniikely to realise thelr values as shown in the sccounting
mecordn in the ordinary course of business had been written down 1o an amoun| which they might be
expecied so lo realise,

Al the dets of this repart, the direclors are not aware of any clreumstances which would render:

(i} the amount wiittan off as bad debis or the amount provided for 2s doubtful debts in the financial
statemants of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial sxtent: and

() the values attribuled to the curent assets in the financial sialemeants of the Group and of the Company
misicading.

Al thie date of this repor!, tha directors are nol aware of ony clrcumstances which heve arisan which would
render adharerca o the existing methcd of valuation of assols or Babiliies of the Group and of tha
Company misleading or inapproprists,

Al the date of this report, the directors are nol aware of any circumstances not otherwise deall with in this
report o Nnandal slatemeants of the Group and of the Company which would render iy amount staled in
the financial stelements misieading.

As al iha date of this report, them dees not exdst-

(1) any charge an tha asasts of tha Group or of the Company which has arisen tinca tha and of the
financial year which securas the llabilllies of sry other person; or

(1) any contingant liablilty of the Group or of the Company which has arsen sinca the end of the finandal
year.

In the opinlon of the directors:-

(I} no cantingant or othar liability has bacoma anfarceabls or is likely o bacama anforcaabla within the
period of twelve months after the and of the financlal yaar which will or may affact the ablitty of the
Group or of the Company to masl is obiigations whan they fall dus; and

() no ltem, transection or event of & motedal and unususl noture has ardsan in the interval between Lhe
end of tha financinl yoor and the data of this roport which |s likely fo offect substantially the resulls of
tha aperelions of the Group or of the Company for tha financlal yeer in which this mport |s made

Audilors

The suditors, Emel & Young, hove expressed thelr willlngnosa (o continiue in office.

Signad on bahalf of the Board In accordance with 8 rasalution of the dirsclors dated 18 Apdl 2012

Sal Chin Hock So8 Wan Seng
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Stetament by Directors

Btalemaont by directors
Pursuant to Sectlon 169 (15) of the Companlea Act, 1985

We, Sal Chin Heck and Ses Wan Seng, being two of the directors of Omapuaper Bevhad, do hereby siate thal,
in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial stalements sat oul on pages 40 to 88 are drawn up
In secordance with Malaysian Financlal Reparting Standands, Inlemational Finenclal Reporting Stendards and
the requirments of the Companies Acl, 1965 in Malaysia &0 88 o give 8 liue Bnd Bl view of the financlal
poeition of tho Group and of tha Company as al 31 Desambaer 2012 and of thair inencial pardormance and cash
fiows for tha year then ended.

Tha Infermation =at out in Mote 38 to tha financial statemants on paga 38 have basn preparad In accordancs
with tha Guidance on Spectal Matter No.1, Determination of Reailsed and Unreallsad Profits or Lossas In the
Context of Disclosure Pursuant 1o Bursa Malaysla Securities Berhad Listing Requiramants, as lssusd by the
Malaysian Inslituta af Accountanis.

Signed on behalf of the Board in sccordance with & reeolution of the direciors dated 18 April 2013.

Sal Chin Hock Sea Wan Sang

Statutory daclaration
Pursuant to Section 189 (16) of the Companiss Act, 1908

I, See Wan Sang, baing the direclor primarily responaible for the finandal mansgement of Omapapor Barhad,
do solemnly and sinceraly dectana thal the sccompanying financial statements o oul on pages 40 to B8 are in
my opinion comect, end | make this solemn declaration consciantiously ballsving the sams to ba trus and by
virtue of the provisions of the Statulory Declarations Acl, 1860,

Subscribad and solemnly declared by

the abovenamad Ses Wan Seng

on 12 Aprl 2013, See Wan Seng
Bafore me,

ONG SAN KEE
Commisslonar for Ogths
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Independent Auditors’ Report To The
Members Of Ornapaper Berhad

Repori on the Mnanclal statsmenis

Wa have audied the financlal stataments of Omapaper Barhad, which comprise the statemants of financial
pasition of the Group and of the Company as at 31 Dacembar 2012, and the statemsants of comprehensive
Income, siatements of changes In aquity and siatemenis of cash fows of tha Group and of the Company far the
yaar than andad, and a summary of significant accounting policles and othar axplanatory nates, as sel oul on
pages 40 to 98,

Direcines” msponsihiifty for tha fnancial siztements

Tha direciore of the Company' ara responaibla for the preparation of fAnancial siatemants ao as o ghve a true
and falr visw In accordance with Malayslan Financial Reporting Standards, Intemational Financlal Raporting
Standards and |hs raqulemants of the Companiss Act, 1865 In Malaysia, Tha directors ars also rmsponsible for
such Intarnal control as the disctors daterminge is necaasary to anabla tha preparation of financlal statamants
that ara fres from materal misstatameant, whathes dus o fraud of emor.

Aldifnrs’ meponsihiity

Our responalbliity Is o sxpmes an oplinlon on thaas financial statamants basad on our audit. Wa conductad our
audlt In aconrdanca with approved standarde on atditing In Malaysia. Thosa standards ragulrs that we comply
with athical mouiremants ana plan and parfomm ha audt 5 ooan reasonabla agsumnce abolt whathar the
financial statemants arm free from matarial misstatamant.

An audlt invalvas parforming precadurss to obiain audlt svidancs aboul the amounts and disclasums In the
financial statemants. The procaduras salaciad depand on our judgmant, Including tha ansassmant of fsks of
matarial misstatamanl of tha financlal ststemants, whather dus fo fraud or emor. In making those risk
ansassmants, wa considar infarnal control relavant is tha sntity's praparstion of financial statamants that give a
mrus and falr view n ardar to dagign audit procaduras thet are approptiate in the clreumstaneas, bul not for the
purpasa af sxpressing an cplnien on the affecthvenass of the antity's intamal control.  An audil alsn Inoilides
evaluating tha appropriateness of the acccunting policing usad and tha masonablanass of accounting
astimatas mada by iha dimctors, as wall 28 avaluating the overall prasantation of tha financlal stxtemants.

Wa beilsve that the audlt evidence we have oblained la suflicient and appropriate to provids a basis for our audh
oplnion,

Opinkon
In eur epinion, tha financial siatements give a trues and falr viaw of tha financlal pasition of s Group and of tha
Company as al 31 Dacambar 2012 and of thalr financlal pedommancs and cash flows for the yaar than ended In

eccardanca with Malaysian Financial Reporting Slandands, Intamational Financial Raporiing Standands and tha
mquiramants of the Companies Act, 1885 In Malaysia.

Raport on othar legal and reguistory equiamants
In sccordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1865 (n Malaysia, we aieo repor the following:
(#) In our opinion, the eccounting and other records and the registers requinsd by the Ac! o ba kept by the

Company and Iz subsidiarias of which we have ecled as audiiors have been properly kepl In accordance
with tha provisions of the Aot
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Independent Auditors’ Report To The
Members Of Ornapaper Berhad

Rapart on athsr lagal and resguiatory requinmants (continued)

{b) We have considered the financlal statements and the auditors’ reports of all the subsidiades of which we
have not acted as suditors, which ame Indicated In Note 15 1o the financial statemants, being financial
statements ihat have been Included In the consolidated financial stataments,

(e} We are satished that the fnancial stetements of the subsidiaries that have baen consolidated with the
financial statements of the Company are In form and conlent eppropriate end propar for the purposes of
the preparation of the consolidatad financial statements and we have recelved satistoctory information and
explanstions required by us for lhose purposes.

{d) The audilors’ reporis on the financia! stelements of the subsidiardes were nol subject 1o any gualification
and did nol include any comment requined to be made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

Othar raporting meponsibiiites

Tha supplamentary Information sst out in Nota 38 o he financial statemants on page 03 Is discicsad la mos!
tha requiremeant of Burea Malsysia Securilies Berhad and [8 not part of the inandcal satamsnts. The direclors
ara reaponaibie for the prepsration of the supplementary Information in accordance with Guidance on Special
Mattar No. 1, Datarmination of Realised and Unmeallsed Profits or Lossas in the Context of Disclosurs Pursuant
to Burea Maisysia Sacuriliea Barhad Lisling Requiremants, &8 1sausd by the Malaysian Insfilute of Accoumtants
{("MIA Guidanea™) and the dirsclive of Bursa Malaysla Securlies Berhad. In our epinion, tha supplemeniary
information has baen prepared, In all matsrial respects, in scoordance with the MiA Guidancs and the direclive
of Buma Malaysia Sacurifies Barhad.

Othar matters

1 As staled In Note 2 1o the financial statements, Omapaper Barhad adopted Malaysinn Financial Reporting
Staridorda on 1 January 2012 with a tmnsition dats of 1 January 2011, Thess siondards were applied
retmapectively by direciom 1o the compamtive information In these financial siatements, induding the
statementis of finoncial position aa st 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2011, and the statements of
comprehensive incoms, stalemanls of changes In aquity and sistsments of cash fiows for the year endad
31 December 2011 and relaled disclosures. We were not engaged io report on the compamtive informalion
amd it is unsudited. Our responsibiiities as part of our audit of the firanclal slatements of the Group and of
the Company for the yeéar ended 31 Dacamber 2012 have, n Uwese circumstances, included oblalning
suflicient appropriate audil evidence that the opening balances as al 1 January 2012 do nol conlain
misstalemenls thal maledally affect the financial posiion a8 of 31 Decsmber 2012 and finuncial
parformancs and cash flows for the year then sndad.

2. This repor is mada solaly to Ihe membars of the Company, 65 8 body, In accordance with Section 174 of
tho Companios Acl, 1985 In Malaysia and Tor no ather purpese. Wa do not assuma responsibllity o any
other persan for tha contenl of this roepor.

Emal & Younrg Lee Ah Too

AF: 0030 2187081 3(J)
Chartered Accouniants Chariered Accountant
Maolake, Malayela

Date: 18 April 2013
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Statements Of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Fnded 31 December 2012

Group Company
Nota 2012 2011 2012 2011
REA'DOD RM'000 RM0O00 RM'000
Continuing cperailons
Ravanub 4 220,338 225,668 rapa 1,637
Cost of goods sold (187,779) (187,218) - <
Grosa profil 441,587 38,448 7.408 1.637
Othar /tama of Incoma
Interasl iIncomo 5 70 65 4 1
Other Incomea -] 586 1,164 - -
Othor iloma of axpenso
Administralive gxpanses (8.350) (7.654) {(178) (184)
Salling and markeling expenses (13,783) (15,144) m (4)
Finence cosls T (3,402} (3,385) - -
Other axpanses (8.072) (6.488) (74) (81}
Profit baforo tax ] 8, 606 o 7,154 1.359
Incomo tix axpense 1" (1,161) {1.156) {1,800) {300)
Prafit, ned of tax, raprasanting
total comprahansive income
for tha ysar T.A45 5,881 5,354 1.058
Altribulable 1o
Crwriors. of the parom T.285 5,801 5,354 1,068
Mon-conimlling intensst 160 80 - -
7445 5,861 5,354 1.058
Earnings por aharo atirlbutzbio
to ownars of the parant (sen)
Basic 12 8.8 7
Dibutesed 12 8.8 .7

The sccompanying accounling policles and explanalory noles
farm an integral parl of the Anancial sietements
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Statements Of Financial Position

As At 31 December 2012

M.41.2012 31423011 01.04 2011
Group Hole RA'000 RM"000 RN'000
ARsots
Nan-currant asasts
Property, plan! and equipment 13 104,837 97,687 BE, 194
Land usa rights 14 4423 A4,553 3,728
Goodwill 18 1.633 1.633 1,833
Imvastmant sacurities 17 - - 244
Defaired (ax assals 25 1170 - -
108,062 103,783 81,787
Currenl assets
Inventones 18 22594 2027 23,855
Trado and olher cshmbles 18 54,629 54,837 58,674
Cash and bank balances 20 19,111 6,495 12545
Tax recoviermbie BAT B55 50T
Cther curment assets 2 1,638 5323 3,726
88,620 89,337 79,166
Assats heid for sals b - - 440
88,620 88,337 99,6368
Total asaais 207 682 183,120 181,433
Equity and |lakilities
Current liabiltien
Borrowlinga 3 b5, 260 57,220 53,837
Trade and othar payablss 24 23121 18,982 25,8686
Curmani tax payihla 178 10 33
T8 560 78,282 80,018
Aol cumrant assais 20,080 13,045 19,520
Mon-cumant Hoabilities
Bormowings = 2,108 5,382 B.103
Dafamrad s [lablilties 3 4 899 3,305 2,945
Non-current [labliities 14,005 B.667 9.048
Tolal Nabilltes 82,660 84, 858 89,0656
Mol azsots 118,117 108,167 102 368
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Statements Of Financial Position

As At 3] December 2012 (Contimued)

31922012 A1 01.01.2011
Group Nols R#'000 RM000 RM"000
Equity attributable to owners
of the parsnt
Share caphal 26 75,251 75.251 75.251
Shars pramium 21 11,1686 11,168 11,168
Treasury shares 28 {488) - -
Ratained samings o0 28442 21,157 15,368

114,380 107,584 101,763

Non-condroliing Interest 7ar 597 B80S
Total equity 115,117 108,181 102,388
Total agquity and liablilties 207 682 193,120 191,433
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Statements Of Financial Position

As At 31 December 2012 (Continued)

31122012 3112201 01.01.2011
Company Note RM000 RM'000 RM'O00
Anznuts
Mon-curment assetis
Ivestment (n subsidiares 15 85,085 1,185 75,585
Current assets
Cther recelvables 18 4,868 10,267 10,780
Cash and bank balances 20 2453 180 215
Tax recovereble 151 140 142
Othar cormant aassls 21 1 10 10
7,673 10,608 11,147
Tetal assats 82,658 ar.m 86,732
Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities
Other payablés 24 a3 31 b b
33 N L]
Mal cirrent aszsls 7.540 10,575 11,116
Total llabilitien a3 3 a1
Mot askelx B2.625 g7, 760 86,701
Equity attributable to ownaers
of tha parant
Ehare capital 25 75,251 75,251 75,251
Sham premium ar 11,156 11,155 11,156
Treasury shares 8 {489) - =
Ratained samings 29 6,707 1,353 294
Total squity 92,625 87,760 56,701
Total aguity and llabilities 02 658 a7,791 88,732

The accompanying accounling policies and explanalory notes
farm an integral par of the fnancial stalemonts
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Statements Of Changes In Equity

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Non-distributable Distributable
Bhare Gham Treasury Rotalned Total
Nota captal premlum sharos samings  equity

Comparny RM'G00 RMTD00 RM00 RMO00D  RM'00D
Opaning balance at

1 January 2014 75,251 11,158 - 284 BETDY
Talal comprehsnsive (ncoms - - - 1.059 1.059
Closing balance =t

31 Decomber 2011 76,251 11,168 - 1363  @7.780
Tatal comprehenaive Incame - - - 5,64 6,364
Traneaction with owners

- Purchase of reasury sharss. 28 - (4B8) - {AB0)
Closing balance al

31 Dacambar 2012 75,251 11,158 {489) 6707 92825

Tha sceompanying scoodnting policias and axpianalony notas
farm an integral gart of the finenclal statemanis
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Statements Of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

Matn 2012 2011 2012 2011
RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000

Operaling acthitias

Profit before tax 8,606 7.017 7,164 1358
Adjustments for.

Impairment lass on financiel assets:

- Trode recsivables 19(n) 29 25 . -

- Diher recelvables 18(b) 118 160 - -
Bad dabis written off 218 2112 . -
Depreciation and amortisation:

- Propacly, plant and equipman! 13 8,600 7. B84 - -

- Lend use rights 14 13 112 - -
Fair value gain on hald-for-irading

inesiment securities . (10} - S
Loes on disposal of avnilable-for-

Bl Investment sacuritios . B - -
Net loes on disposal of proparty,

piant and equipmant 781 102 = 5
Property, plant and équipment

writhon off 1,062 418 - .
Reversal of allowanca lar impalmenl

lo6s on lrads moaivables (a1) (168) = .
Interes! axpanse a402 3,365 - -
Interest Incomes (70) {85) (4) {1)
Total adjustments 14238 1374 (4) (1)
Operating caah fiows before

changes In working capital 22,844 20,761 7.180 1388
Changos in working cagilsl

(Increase)idectesss In inventories {568) 1,434 - -
Ducreass in racaivablaes {184) 723 5,208 516
Decraasa/{increasa) in other

cument asssls 3684 {1,698) g -
(Decressa)lincreass |n puyables 4,158 5,727 3 iz
Total changos In working copitil 7,081 {5, 168) £,310 13
Cash flows fram oparations 28,535 15,583 12460 1871
Interast pald (3.402) (3.365) = -
Interest recehed 0 &5 4 1
Not cash from opemting nctivitios 25,843 11,218 10,662 1,665
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Statements Of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended 11 December 20112 (Continued)
Group Company
Nota 2012 2011 012 2011
RM 000 RM TG00 RM000 RM'000

Investing acliviiles
Purchas® of property, plant and
equipment 13(c) (10,878) {22,115) - -
Acquisition of land use rights 14 - (93a) = -
Additional subscription in shares
in subsidiaries - - (7.900) {1,600}
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 734 3,231 - -
Procseds from disposal of
available-for-sale investmenl
socurities : 248
Nat cash used In Inveating
activitles {10,145) {18,677) (7,900} {1,800}
Financing activities
Erawdown of tlerm kans #.B58 3,664 - -
Rapaymant of tarm loans (1.949) (839) - -
Dividand 30 i (B8) = -
Rapayment of finance lease payables [Z.885) (3,813) . .
{Decroase)\ncroase [n short-iemm
barrowings 11,630) 3,952 - =
Purchase of reesury shores 28 [489) - (488) -
Nat cash (used In)from
financing activides (2.077) 2,305 (488)
Nt increasal{decrease) in caah
and coash equivalents 13,721 {5,063) 2278 (35)
Cash and cash egquivalents
ot 1 January 3,498 9,459 180 215
Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December 20 17,217 3,408 2453 180

The sccompenying eccounting policies and explaneiory nolas
form an Integral part of the financial sistements
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Fnded 31 December 2012

1. Corporats Information

Omapaper Barhad is a public limiied liabiity company, Incorpomied and domicilted in Malaysis, and is
Iistod on tha Maln Market of Bursa Malaysia Securilies Berhad, The principal place of businoss s situaled
ol No. 2388, Kawasan Parindusirian Batu Besendam, Perdnghkal IV, 75350 Motaka, Malaysia:

Tha principal activities of the Company are investmant holding and provision of managament sarvices,
Thia principal activilies of the subsidiardes are manufacturing Gnd =ale of comugated boards and caron
boxas. Tham have been no significant changas in Ihe nalure of tha principal activities during the financlal
year.

2 Summary of slgnificant accounting pollclan
2.1 Basis of praparation

Thasa financial statsmants have besn proparad In accordanca with Malaysian Financinl Reparting
Standards (MFRS) an issusd by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB), Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the Intamational Accounting Standards Board
and the reguisments of the Companies Acl, 1988 in Malaysin, Refer 1o Nota 2.2 for detsiled
informmtion on how tha Group and tha Company adopiad MFRS.

The finencidl statements have also besn preparsd on a historical basis, uninas otherwina (ndicated
In tha acenuniing policiss. Balow.

The financial statamarts am presantsd in Ringgit Malsysia (RM) 2nd all valuss am rounded to tha
nanmx thousand (RIM000) axcapt when otharwisa indicatad.

22 Firstdima adoption of MFRS

For pariods up to and including tha year ended 21 Decambar 2011, tha Group and the Company
had previously prepared financal sistemants in accomdance wilth Financial Raporting Standards
(FRE),

Thess financial stalsmants are the first the Group and the Company have prepared in accordance
with MFRS, Accordingly, the Group and the Company have prapared financial statements which
comply with MFRS fogeiher with the comparstive period data as s, and for the year ended, 31
Decambar 2011, as describad in the sccounling policies. In prapanng thesa financial ststermants,
tha Group's and the Company's opening ststements of financial posfion were prepared as st 1
January 2011, belng the date of Iransilion to MFRS. No adjusimants weate required to be made to
tha FRS siatemenis of financial posilion a8 &l 1 Janusry 2017 and the previously published FRS
financial statemenis as af, and for tha year endad, 31 Dacember 2011. Henca, the following am
not presenisd;
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

2, Bummaery of significant accounting pallcles (continuad)
22 First4ime adoption of MFRS (comtinued)

(m)

()

The FRE camying amount of goodwill le used In the opaning MFRS statamant of financlal
peaition and the Group has Iesled goodwll for Impalrmeant al the dale of ranalfion © MFRS.
No goodwill Impalmment was deamad necassany at 1 January 2011,

Tha astimates al 1 January 2011 and at 31 Dacambar 2011 are conslstan! with (nosa mads for
the same dates In accordance wih FRS and the esiimales ussd by the Group and the
Company o present thesa amounts In asccordance wih MFRS reflsct conditions at
1 January 2011, and as of 31 Decamber 2011,

MFRE 1 Firsi-Time Adopion of Me!aysian Financial Reporting Standards allows firsi-tme ndopters
cerlain examptions from the mtrospeciive application of coraln MFRS and the Group and tho
Company heva applied the foliowing sxemplions:

()

(b)

MFRS 1 provides the oplion to apply MFRS 3 Busineas Combinations prospeciively from the
dats of transition or frem a spaciic date prior to the date of transifion. This provides refisf from
full retrospactive application of MFRS 3 which would requira reststermnant of all business
combinations priar to the dats of transition, The Group has elscled to apply MFRS 3
prospachvely from the date of transition. In respect of acquisitions pdor to the dete of
franaition:

{{) The classification of former business combinations under FRS |a maintained;

() There iz no re-measurement of original fair values detanmined el the time of business
combination (dale of acquiaition); and

(i) The carylng amount of goodwill ecognised under FRS I not adjusted,

Properly, plant and equipment were camisd In the stalamants of financial position prapared in
accordance with FRS on the cost basis. The Group continues io regard thosa values s cost

ai tha date of the transition lo MFRS.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (conlinued)
22 First-tima adoption of MFR23 (canfinued)

(¢) The FRS camying amount of goodwill is used in the opening MFRS statement of financial
position and the Group has testad goodwdll for Impainment at the date of transition 1o MFRS. No
goodwill impalrment was deemad necessary at 1 January 2011,

{d) The estimates at 1 January 2011 and at 31 December 2011 are consistent with those made for
Ihe same dates in sccondance with FRS and the eslimotes used by the Group and the
Company lo present these amcunts in sccordance with MFRS reflect conditions al
1 January 2011, and sy of 31 December 2011.

231 Standards, amendmants and interprotations insusd but not yet affactive

Slandards, amendments and intarpretations Esued bul nol y8i slaciive up lo the dals of Esuance of
the Group's snd Company's financial staternents are fisted below. The Group and the Company
infend to adopt, where epplicable, thesa standards, amendments and interprelations es and when
they become affective:

(s} Effectiva for annual parioda beginning on or after 1 July 2012

MFRS 101 Amandmants to MFRS 101 Prasantation of Financinl Smtamants
(Presentaion of llams of Clher Comprehansiva Incoma)

(b) ENeclive for snnual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

MFRS 1 Amendments to MFRS 1 First-tima Adoption of Malaysian Finenclal
Raporiing Standards (Govemmant Loan)
MFRS 1 Amendmenis to MFRS 1 Fisi-lime Adoption of Malayelan Financlal

Raporiing Slandards (Annual Improvemants 2008 - 2011 Cycle)

MFRS 3 MFRS 3 Business Combinations ([FRS 3 issved by IASE in March
2004)

MFRS T Amendments to MFRS 7 Finanda! Instrumenis: Disclosures
(Offsstting Financial Asssts and Financial Lisbilifles)

MFRS 10 Consnildatad Financial Statamsants

MFRS 10 Amendments io MFRS 10 Consolidaied Financll Statemants

{Traneiion Guidance)
MFRS 11 Jolnt Amrangemants
MFRS 11 Amendments to MFRS 11 Jaint Amrangaments (Transition Guidance)

MFRS 12 Disciosure of Interests in Cither Entities

MFRS 12 Amendmeants o MFRS 12 Disclosure of Intoresis in Ofher Enliias
(Traneiton Guidance)

MFRS 13 Falr Value Maasuremant

MFRE 101 Armandments to MFRS 101 Presamtation of Financial Stademanis
{Annual Improvements 2009 - 2011 Cyclhe)

MFRS 118  Amendments to MFRS 116 Proparty, Plant and Equipment (Annual
Improverments 2008 - 2011 Cyds)
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 3] December 2012

4. Bummery of significant sccounting policles [continued)
23 Siandards, amendmonts and interpretations issved but not yet effaclive [continuad)
(b} Effactive for annual periods baginning on or afisr 1 Japuary 2013 (continuad)

MFRS 118 Employee Benefits

MFRS 127 Consolidalad and Separatn Financial Stelamants (LAS 27 as revisad
by IASB In Deceamber 2003)

MFRS 127 Sapamts Finenclal Statemants

MFRS 128  [nvesiments In Associsies and Jainl Veniures

MFRS 132 Amandmenis o MFRS 132 Financial Instrumeants: Presantalion
{Annual Improvements 2008 - 2011 Cycle)

MFRE 124  Amendments lo MFRS 134 Inlerim Financisl Reparting (Annual
improvemeants 2008 - 2011 Cydle)

IC Int. 2 Amendmants (o IC Int. 2 Membars’ Shares in Co-oparativa Entities
and Similar Instruments {Annual Improvements 2006 - 2011 Cyde)

I Ink. 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

(e} Effective for annusl periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

MFRS & Financlal Instrurmants

MFRS 10 Amandmants 1o MFRS 10 Consafidatad Financial Stalemanis
(Investment Entitles)

MFRE 12 Amandmania o MFRS 12 Disclosurae of interasts in Diher Enlities
(Investment Enfities)

MFRS 127 Amandmants o MFRS 12T Consolidated and Separale Financial
Statements (Investment Entities)

MFRS 132 Amandmants io MFRS 132 Financial Instrumanis: Presantation
(Offsalting Financial Agsets and Financial Liabliifies)

(d) Effective for annual perfods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
MFRS 8 Financial Instnsmants

The directors expact that tha adoption of tha sbove standands and intarpretations will have no
materal Impact on the financial statarmants In the peried of initial application, excepl ss discussed
bealow:

(s) Tha directors axpect that the adaption of the abova standards and Interpratations will have no
matadal impact on tha finandal stslaments in tha parod of initlal application, excapt as
discussad balow:

(s} MFRS J Buslness Comblnations [IFRS 3 Business Combinatlons lesued by IASB In
March 2004) and MFRS 127 Conssollduted and Saparate Flnanclal Statomonts (IAS 27
as revised by IASB In December 2003)
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To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

2. Summary of significamt accaunting policiea (continuad)
2.3 Stsndards, amendments and imterpretstions issued but net yot effoctive (continued)

(2}

(w)

(c)

()

(m)

MFRS 3 Business Combinailons (IFRE 3 Business Combinalions lssued by |ASB In March
2004) wnd MFRS 127 Conasalidated and Separate Financial Stateméents (1AS 27 as revised
bry IASH in Doctmber 2003) [econtinuad)

An entity shill apply these earilér verslons of MFRS 3 and MFRS 127 only If the enikty has
slocted to do so as allowsd in MFRS 10 Consolidatsd Financial Statemants, The adoptions of
thess standards are nol expected to have any significant impact o the Group snd to tha
Company.

MFRS 8 Financial Instruments

MFRS 2 reflects the firsl phaes of the work on the replacamant of MFRS 138 Financial
Instrumanita: Recognilion end Measurameani and appliss o classification and measurémant of
financisl asssis and fnancisl fabiities as dafined |n MFRS 138 Financial insfrumands:
Recognition and Maasummant. The adoption of tha firet phasa of MFRS 8 will have an affect on
ihe classification and messuramant of tha Group's financial Bssets. The Group will quantify tha
effect In conjunclion with the other phasss, when the final standard including all phasss is
ismued.

MFRE 10 Consolldated Financial Statemunts

MFRS 10 roplsces parl of MFRS 127 Conuolidated snd Separate Finands! Stetements that
deals with consolidaled fnancigl stelements and IC Intepretaticn 112 Consolidation — Special

Pumpose Entitias.
Undar MFRS 10, an investor controls an invesiee when:

(11 8 INVestor NES POWAr SVET BN INVesTes,

(1) ma investor has exposlre, of rights, 10 vardabis ralurms from e Involvament with the
Investae, and

(i) the mvestor hes abilily to use lis power over the Investos o affect the amount of the
iNvasiors natums.

Undar MFRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financlal Statermants, control was dafined as the
powar lo govem the financial and oporating policies of an entity so as to cbiain banefits from it
aclivitias,

MFRS 10 includes deteiled guldunce to explain whon an investor has control over the inveslee,
MFRS 10 mguires the invaslor to leke Into account Bl relovant fects and cifioumsinnges.

MFRE 13 Falr Valua Meazumaman!

MFRS 13 estabilahes & single sourcs of guldance under MFRS for all falf value measuremsnts.
MFRS 13 doas not changa when an anifty |= requirsd io use falr value, byt rather provides
guidance an how lo measune fair value under MFRS when fair value s requind or permitied.

Amendmonts to MFRS 101 Prasamtation of Financizl Statemants
(Armua! Improvements 2008 - 2011 Cycle)

The amendments lo MFRS 101 change the grouping of ilems presented in other comprehensive
Income. lema that could ba rmclaseified (or recyclad) 1o profit er loss ol a future peint in Ume (for
exnmple, exchange differences on (mnalation of foreign opembions and nel loss or gain on
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

2. Bummary of significant acsounting policies (comtinuad)

23 Standards, smandmants and interpratations [ssusd but not yat affactive (eontinued)

(e} Amandmants lo MFRS 101 Presantalion of Financlal Stataments
{Annual Improvements 2008 - 2011 Cycie)

avallable-for-sale financlal esssty) would be presentad sepamtely from fems which will never be
reclassilled (for axsmple, sctuarisl gelna and losses on deflned benefit plans and revaluation of
land and bulklings), The amendmenl affects presantalion only and has no impect on the
Group's financial poellion and performanca.

{1 MFRS 127 Separats Financlal Statemants

As & consaquence of the new MFRS 10 and MFRS 12, MFRS 127 |s limited to accounting for
subsidiaries, joinfly controfied entities and assoclaiss in separate financlal siatements.

14 Beula of consolidation

Tha consolidaind financial statemants comprize the financial stetemeants of the Company and af jis
subskdiarias as al the raparting date, Subsldiarias ara fully consalldated from tha data of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group ablaina control, and conlinue to ba consolidated untll the dals
whan such control ceasss. The financial stelemants of tha subsidianes are prepared for the tame
reporting perod as the Company, using consisten] accounting policies. All Intre-group balinces,
irensactions, unrealised gains srd losses resulling from intra-group transactions and dividends e
elimirated in full.

Losses within & subsidiary ars atiributed o the non-controfling Interes| even [T that results In & deficll
balanca.

A change In the ownarship Interast of & subsidlary, without & loss of control, Is acoountad for as an
equity rensaction. i the Group loses control over & subsidiary, I ;

Darecognises lhe essels (including poodwill) and llablilins of the subsidiary

Daracognisas the carmying amaunt of any nen-controfing Intanest
Derscognisas the cumulative imnelstion differencas, reconded In aquity

Recognises the fair vajus of the consideration recalved

Recognises the falr valus of any invesiment relsined

Recognises any surplus or deficit in prafil or loss

Reclassifies he parent's shere of components previously recognised in. other comprehensive
Income |o proft or loss or retalned eamings, 23 appropriste

25 Buslness combinstions snd goodwilll

Buslnass combingtions aie accountad for using the acxulaition method. The cosl of an scquBifion I
maasured as the aggregaie of the consideration lransfermed, measured &t acquisiion date falr value
and the amount of any non-controling interast in the acquires. For sach business combination, the
Group elecla whether il measures the non-controling interest in the acquires either at fair value or at
the proportonale share of the acquires's identifiable net essets. Acquisition cests incurred are
expensad and Included In admintsirative expenses.

If tha business combination is achleved in slagos, the praviously helo equity Interas! in remeasurad
al Iz scquisilion date falr valug and any resullant galn or loes Is reeognised in prafit or loss.

Any confingant considnration to ba transfarmad by tha acquirar will ba recognised st fair value at tha
pcquinition date. Subsequent changes [n the fir value of the contingen! considerlion which is
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

2. Summary of slgnificant sccounting pollclea (continued)

28

27

Business combinstions and goodwill [continued)

deamad 1o ba an asset or Maliity, will ba recognisad in accardance with MERS 139 althar In prafit or
lzsa or &5 & changs o olhar comprehansive Income. If tha confingant consldaration la dassified aa
equity, il will nol be re-messured. Subssquenl seltlement is acoountsd for within eqguily. In Inslances
wherse the cantingesnt consideration doas not fall within the scope of MFRS 139, it la mensured In
accordance with the approprale MFRS.

Goodwill is initkally messursd &l cosl, being the sxcess of the aggregate & the consideralion
imnsiarmad and the amount meognisad for non-controliing imarast over the ned Idantifiable assats
acquined and llabiities assumed. If this conaldaration is lower than the fair valus of the net assets of
ihe subsidiary acquined, the differsnce iz recognisad In profil or loss.

Afiar initial recognilion, gocdwill 1s meesuned at cosl less any sccumulaied impalrment lossas. Forihe
purpcese of impairment lesiing, goodwiil acquired in & business combinalion is, Trom he scoulsition
data, allseated to aach of the Graup's carh-genarting unile that are mpected 1o benafit from the
combirmation, irespaciive of whather other assels or liabllites of the scquires are assigned to thosa
uniis.

Where goodwill forms part of 2 cash-generating unil and part of the opemtion within that unil is
disposed of, the goodwill assaciatad with the operation disposed of Is Inciuded In the camying amourni
af iho oparation when detarmining tha galn or loss on disposal of the operation. Geoodwill disposad of
in this circumsiancs s measyunad based on the relative values of the operation disposad of and tha
parlion of the cash-ganereting unll relained.

Ferelgn currency tranalation

(a) Funclional and presantstion currency

The Group's and the Company's financial statements aro presented (n Ringak Malaysian
which [s alse the Company's funciicna! cumrency. Eech enlily In tha Group determines Iis own
functional cumancy and [lems included n the fnancial etatements of each enlity am messured
using that functioml cumancy.

{6) Transacions and balances

Transaclions in forelgn curmsncles are Inltially moordad by the Grolp antifes at tha funclional
currancy rates pravalling at the date of the transaction. Monslary assats and Hablitas
denominated In foralgn cumencies are retranslated af the functiohal cumsncy spot rate of
axchanga niling al the mporiing dale. Al diferences s laken o the profil or loss.
Mon-monatary ilams thal are measured In terms of historicel cost In & foreign currency are
translated using the exchange reies as &t the daies of the infiial transactions.

Revenle recognition

Revenus 8 moopnised (o the extent that | i probabls that the aconomic benalits will Tiow lo tha
Group and the Company and the revanye can bo reliably measured, regardless of when tha paymani
is baing mads. Revanue s measured &t the Teir value of the considemtion ecahad or moavabls,
taking inte account contraciually defined larms of payment and axcluding taxes of duly,

The Company and its subsidiaries assess their mvenue arangemaenis agains! spacific oriteria in
order o determine if the Company and its subadiaries ere scling as prindpal or agenl. The Group
and fts subsidieries have concluded thal they are acling #s a prnclpsl In &l of s revenus
armengomants. The follewing specilic recognition crilerda musl also ba mel befom evanue s
PECOn nisad:
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

2. Summary of aignificant aceounting poalicies [continuesd)
Ravenue recognition (continued)

.7

fa)

(k)

fe)

(d)

(o)

Ssla of goods

Ravanua from e sala of goods |8 recognisad whan tha significam nsks and rewards of
ownamhlp of the geods have passad o the buyer, usually on dalivery of the goods.

Dividend |ncomoe

Dividand incorng I8 recogrised when tha Group's and (he Company's right 1o recaive payrment
i sutabliahed,

Manogamant feas

Managamont fees are recognised when services are rendered,

Interest Incoma

For all financial instruments measured el amortised cost and interest bearing financial assals
dlassifisd a8 avaliabla for sale, interasl income or expenss la racorded using the affactive
interest rals (EIR), which |& the rals that exactly discounts the estimatad fulure cash paymants
or mceipts thmugh the spactad ifs of the fnancial Instiment or a shorer pariod, whers

sppropriate, to the net camying amount of tha financial asasl or Nablity, Intarest income s
Includea in finance Incoma in the profit or loas,

Rantal income

Rantal incoma s accounted for on a straigntding basis over the laasa terma. The sggregeis
‘costs of Incentives provided 1o lessees Are recoghissd a8 A neduction of antal Income ovar the
iaase tamm on & stralght-line basis,

Empiloyess benelits

U]

(n

Short term benefits

Wages, salaries, bonusss and soclal sscurtty contribulions an recognipsd s an axpanss in the
year In which the sssodlated services are rendered by employess. Shont tem accumulsting
companeated absances such as pald annusl lsava ane recognisad whan sarvices s rendansd
by employess that Increasa thelr entitlemant lo Rrurs compeneated absencea. Short term
non-accumlisting compamaaiad abssnces such as mick isave am mcogniasd whan tha
absancEs OCOUT,

Dafined coniribution plana

Tha Group makes confributions 12 the Employess Provident Fund In Malaysla, a dafinad
confribtion panalon schema. Contributions o defined canfribution pansion schamas an
mcognizad B Bn axpanss In tha pariod (nwhich The related sandcs & parfomed.

Taxen

(2)

Curmant incoma tax

Current income lak assets and [abilities for the current perind are measured af the smoun
mxpecied o be recovared fram or paid to the Inxstion suthorities. The iax rates and t=x laws
used lo compute the smount are those thetl ane enasted or substantively ensctad, el the
reporiing date In the countries where the Group opermates and generates tmmbls neame.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

2. Bummery of significant gecounting policlea (comtinued)
Taxea (continued)

29

(b)

Curmant Income @x (continusd)

Current income tax relating to tems recognised directly In equity is recognised In equity and not
in the profil or loss. Menegemen pedodically evaluates positions laken In the lax retums with
mespect to situafions in which epplicable tax regulations ere subject to inlerpretalion end
ostablishes provisions where appropriale.

Defarred tox

Dafarred tox s provided using the llablity method on empomiy difforances al the reporting date
batwaen tha tax bases of assaty and |labliities and thalr camying amounts for financial reporting
PUTDOBAE.

Dalermed tax liabilitles are recognized Tor all temporary diferences, excapt:

() where the doferred tex llabdity arses from the initial recognition of goedwill or of an asset or
linbility in @ transection thal is not & business combination and, at the time of the trensaction,
gffects nefthar the scoounting profil nor twable profil or lous; and

(i) In respact of taxabls lemporary differences assoclated with Investmants In subsldiates,
whaste the iming of the reversal of the temporany diffsrences can ba controlled and B &
prebable that the Empordry diffemences will nol reverse In the forssssabls future.

Dnfermd lax ssseis am moognised for all deduclible tempomry differences, curry forward of
unused tax credits and unused [ax losses, (o the exdent thal i Is probable thet taxsble profit will
ba aveilable against which the daductible wmporary differences, and the camy forward of
unused tax cradits and urused lnx losses can be uiilised, axcapk

() where the defermed ta asset relating to the deductible lemperary diference arises from the
inlial recognition of an assel or Eebifity n a transasticn thel = nol @ business combineation
and, &t lhe tme of the tunsaciion, effects nefther lhe nooounting profil nor texeble profil or
loss: and

(i} In mespect of daductible tamporary difemmnces associated with Investmants In subsidiarias,
dofarrad tax assets am recognised only fo Ihe mdent that It Is probable that the lemporary
differencas will ravaras (n the foresssadle filure and taxable profit will ke svailable against
which the temporary differences can ba ulilisad.

Tha camying amount of deferred tax sssets is reviewed al each reporting dats and reduced lo
the axtant that It Is no longar probabis that sufficient taxabila profit will be avallable to atiow all o
parl of the defarred tax assel to be uiised. Unrecognised defermed tax assals are reassassed
at aach reporming dale and are recognised lo the axtant that i has bacome probabla that future
tatabls profits will allow the defered tax aaset o ba recoverad,

Doforrad tox nesats and labiiios are measured at the tax retes that am expectad lo apoly in tha
yaar when the sgsél s realised or the kabilily is setiied, basaed on tax rales {and Lax lews) that
hava baan snactad or substantivaly snacted al tha raparting dete,

Deferred tax relating to lems recognisad outside profit or loss i3 recognised outsids profit or
loss. Defered lax Homs are recognised In comelatton to the underdying trensaction cither in

other comprahenghwe Income or dinsclly in squity,
Daferred lay asseta and defermed tax [iabilides are offeel il @ legally enforceakie rght exisls 1o

sat off currenl tax azssls against cumrent income tax fsbillies and the dofered ores refate o
the same taxable entity and the same uption suthority.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

< Summary of significant sccounting policies (continuod)

29

2.10

:Iﬂ

212

Taxes {continuad)

(b) Delermed tax (comtinuad]

Tax banafits scquined ss parl of a business combination, bul nol satisfying he critera for
separate racognition al that dale, would be recagnised subseguently il new information about
facts and clrcumstancas changad. Tha adjusimant would alinar be maatad as a mduction o
goadwill (as long as It doss not excesd  goadwill) If || Is Incumad during the measursment pariod
or In profit or loss.

(¢) Saies tax
Revanuas, axpansas and aseats ars recognisad net of the amount of sales ax except:

(i} wherethe sales tnx incumed on a purchase of Essals or services |5 nol recovernbis from the
taxstion authority, fn which casa the sales tax is recognised ay parl of the cost of acqulsition
of the asset or as part of the expenss li2m as applicable; and

(i} recaihvablos and payables (hal ans stated wilh the amount of sales tex includad.

Tha nat amount of sales tax reccverable from, or payahia 1o, the taaticn autharity Is Included as
part of mcaivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Mon-current saswts held for sale and discontinued operalions

Maon-currant assats and disposal groups clessifisd as held for sals ara measurnd & the [owsr of thair
carrying amount and fair velua less cosls o sall. Non-cument asests and dieposal groups dm
classifiad A8 hald for aals I thalr cammylng amounts will ba mcovansd pHncipatly through & sals
transaction rather than through continuing usa. This condition ks regarded as mel only whan the sale
is highly probable and the assel or disposal group is avallabla for immediate =aie In is presenst
condition. Managemen! must be committad tn the saln, which should ba expected o qualify for
recognition s a completed sale within one year from (he dale ol classification,

In the consolidated siatemani of comprohenstve incoma of the reporting parod, and of tho
comparable period of the previous year, income and aspenses from disconlinued opemions am
repormixi saparataly from incoms and axpansas from continuing oparations, down o thia laval of proft
aftar taxae, avan whan the Group retalns a non-controlling Interest in the subsidiany after the sala, Tha
reaulling profil or loss {after taxes) is reporied saparately n the statemeant of comprehansiva income.

Property, plant and equipmen! and Intangible sesals, i any, once dassilled as held for sale am not
deprociatad or amortisad,

Bommowing costs

Bammowing costs dinectly atiributable to the acquision, construction or production of an asset that
necassarily takes a substantial pariod of ima Io get ready for its intendad use or 2ale sme capitalised
as pari of the cost ol the respeciive szsals. All other borrowing cosia am expensed In tho period They
ocour. Bomowing cosls consis! of imerssl and other cosls lhal an enlity incurs In conneclion with the
bermrowing of funds.

Proparty, plant and equipmert

Properly, plant and equipment are stated at cosl. net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulaled
impairment losses, if any. Such cost inciudes the cost of replacing component parts of the property,
planl and equipment and bomowing costs for long-term construction projects i the recognition criteria
Bre mot.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

2 Summary of aignifican] acesuniing policies [continuad)

212

213

Proparty, plant and squipmant (continuad)

When significanl parts of propery, plani and equipment are réquired 1o be replaced st intervals, the
Group derecognises the replaced part, and recogrises the new part with itz own essocinted usaful iife
and depreciation. Likewisa, when a major inspeclion is performed, It cosl s recognised in the
camying amount of tha plant and equipmant as a replacament |f the recognition critera are satisfied,
All gthar repalr end maintenance costs are recognised in tho profil or loss a6 Incurmed. Tha prosant
valua of the expected cosl for the decommissioning of the aseael afler e use i Intludad in tha cosl of
Ine nespactiva assat if tha racognition eritada for & provision are mal.

Depraciation s calculated on a siralghi-ine basls over the sstimaled usaful (ives of the assais as
fallows:

Leasahald land 09 yaars
Faclory bulidings 50 yaars
Piant and machinery 6 to 20 yaars
Other assets 5to 10 years

An Hem of property, planl and squipment s derecognisad upon disposal or whon no Tulure economic
benefilts sre sxpecied from ite use or disposal. Any gain or loss on  derecognilion of the assel is
imdudad in he profit or loss in Lha yesr the aasel is demcognisad.

Tha assats’ rsldual valuas, ussful lives and mathadn of dapraclation am reviewsd & sach financial
yaar and and adjusted praspactively, If sppropriabe,

Laasas

The determination of whither an amangemenl ig, or conlaing, & legse s based on the substance of the
amangemeni of the inception date, whether fullliment of the amangemant is dependent on the uas of
@ specific essut or sesels or the amangement conveys e righit 1o use the assal, even I that right is nol
axplicitly specifiad in an amangemant.

{a) Group zs lessos

Finsincs leaseas which Imnsfor (o the Group substantially all the nsks and benafits incidental lo
ownership of the lsesed tem, are copitolisad al the commencamant of tho leass ol the fair valus
of the leased property or, if iower, et the present value of the minimum leass payments. Loass
paymants are apportionad balwaen finance changas and reduction of the leasa labiily =0 as o
achiava & constant rate of Interast on tha remalning balanca of tha flablity. Finance chargas are
recognised In Mnanca costs In the profit or loss.

Alessed gesel is depreciated aver the useful life of the essat. However, if there is no reasonabla
cartainly that the Group will obiain ownership by the end of the [sasa lerm, the assst ls
depreciatsd over lhe shorter of the estmated useful life of the essel and he lease rm.

Opomating lsase payments are recognised ag an operaling sxpensa in ke profil or loss on a
sliwighl-fne besis over the lease torm,

{b] Group = lessor

Leasas in which thas Group do not iransfer substantialty ail tha risks and banafits of ownerhip of
the assel are cassified as cperating leases. Inilisl direcl costs inoumed In negotiating an
operating lease ore added to the camying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lemaa term on the same beses as rental Income. Conlingent renis are recognised es mvenue In
Unis pieried In wiideh thay ene sarmed.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policles (conlinued)

214

2.15

.18

237

Land use rights

Land uss rights ams initially measured al cosl. Following inftial recogniion, fand use rights &
maasurad at cost lasz accumulatng amosisatinn and accumulatad Impalrmant (ossas. Tha land uss
rights am amortised ovar thair lesse tems.

Invastmant in subgidiarics

A subeldiary is an antity over which the Group has [he power 1 govem he financal and opsmating
policles so as io obtain bansfits from Il activities,

In the Company's sepamits finandal stiatemeants, [mvesimeant in subsidlanes is pocotnited for at cost
|ess impairment losses.

Inventorias

Inventores are staled at the lower of cost and nel realisable velus. Costs incurmed in bringing the
inveriores (o their presant location and condifion are accounted for an follows:

{s) Rawmstenals purchase costs on a weighled everage besls.

{B) Finished goods and work-in-progress: Cost of direct matorials and labour snd u proporlion of
manufaciuring overheads bassd on normal operaling capecity but excluding bormowing cosls

Nel realizable value is the estimaled seliing price in the ordinary course of business, leea ealimated
costy af complation and the esfimalad costa necessary o make the sale.

impaimment of nonJinancial assats

Tha Group ssseeses ol sach repoding dals whather (hems = an Indicalion that an assal may ba
Impalred, i any Indication axiats, or whan annual Impairmant tasting for an Assat s requined, the Group
astimates the 2ssat’s recovamable amounl. An assst’s recovamable amouni & the higher of an sesal’s
or cash-ganarating unit's (CEU) falr valus lsss conts fo sall and [ valus In uss and b= datermined for
an individual sasat, Unless tha asset doas nol gonaraie cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assats,

Where the cammying amount of en sssel or CGU exceeds Ils recoverable amount, the assel &
considerad Impairmd and ls written down to lls recovarable amourt. In assassing valus in uss, the
astimated future cash flows ame discountad to thelr present valus using a pra-dak discount rate that
raflects currant market assessamants of the ime value of maney and the risks specific to fhe assat. In
dedarmining falr value less costn to sall, recan! markel iransactions ara taken Into accourt, Il avallable,
If no such transaciions can be identified, an approprists valuation model is used, Thess caiculations
am comoborated by valualion multiples, quoted shame prices for publicly taded subsidinri=s or other
available fair value indicatons.

The Group bases its Impaimment calculation on detallad budgets and forecast calculstinns which am
pmpared saparately for sach of ths Group's cash-generating units to which the individual asssts ars
allocatad, Thess budoets and forecast calculafions ara ganarally covering a paniod of five yaars. For
longer pariads, a long tam growth rals (s caleulsted and appliied o projsc! fulirs cagh flows afier the
fiith year.

Impaimmant lossss of continuing oparstons, including impairment on imvantedes, e recognized In the
profit or loss in those exponse categones consistant with the Fundion of the impaired assat,
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2 Summary of significant aceaunting policias (continuad)

217 impairment of nen-financinl assels (comtinued)

298

19

For noasls exduding goodwill, on masessment is mode ot each reporting dote s to whether thers ia
nny indication that previously mcognised impeimment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased, I such indication exists, lhe Group esfimates the esset's or cash-generating unit's
recoverable amount. A previously moognised impairment loss i= reversed only if there has been a
change n (he sssumplons used (o delermine the aspels recoversble emounl sipce the jest
impalrment jces was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the cafrying amount of e assel does
riol excead ity recoverable amount, nor exssed the camrying amount thet would have been determined,
nel of depreciation, had no Impairmenl lose been recognised for the asset in prior years, Such reversal
is recognised In the profit or logs.

Goodwill |a tested for Impalment annually (as al 31 December) and when circumstances Indicate thal
thes carrylng value may be impalred.

Impairment s determined lfor goodwill by sssessing the recoverable amounl of sach cash-generating
unit for group of cash-penerating units) o which the goodwill relates. YWhare the recoverable amount
of the cash generaling unit is lees than their camying emount an impaiment loss is recoanised,
Impairment lotses rélating lo goodwill cannol be reversed In fulure pereds.

Cash and ghorl-term doposila

Cash and shori-term deposits In the statements of financial position comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short-term deposits with & maturity of three montha or less.

For the purpose of the statemenis of cazh Nows, cash end cash equivelents conalst of cash and
shof-lerm depoails &s defined above, nel of outstanding bank overdralta, / &ny.

Finantcial insfrumants
(a) Financial assats

M nitial recognition and measurement

Financial gasets within the scope of MFRS 138 are classiied as financial assots ot falr value
through proft o loss, losrs and recalvables, held-le-maturty invesiments, avallable-for-sale
financial sesals, or as derivatives designated as hedging inslruments In &n effective hedge,
as appropriste. The Group delermines the classificafion of ils financial assels at (nithel

recognition.

All inancial asasls are recognised Initislly i Tair value plus, in the case of aseels not al falr
value through profit or loss, directly sliibutable ranssction couts.

Purchases or sales of financial sssets thal rmqulre delivery of assels wilthin & Ume frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way lrades) are
recogniged on the rade dals, the dals that the Group commite 1o purchase or ssll the sssel

The Group's NMnanclal assels include cash and shorl-lerm deposils, lrade and other
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2. Bummary of significant sccounting pallcles (continuad)
2,19 Financial Instrumants (continied)
(a) Financlal essets (continued)
() nittal recognition and maasuramant (continued)
roceivables and quolsd finendial Insrumanis.
(I} Subseguent msasurement
Tha subsequent measurament of finencial eesats depends on [heir cassilication es follows:

1 ryvalus th or [ass

Financial sssats at feir value through profit or foss includes financial assets held for trading
and financial sssels designated ugon inftial recognition at fair valus through profit or loss.
Financial assals aro dassified as held for mding i they am soguired for the purpose of
sdfling or ropurchasing in the near term. This calegory includes dervative financial
instruments antored inlo by the Group that are not designated as hedging instrumants in
hedge relationships as dafined by MFRS 139, Derivatives, including sopareled embedded
dervaiives are also classified as held for trading unless they ere designaled ss effectve
hedging Instruments, Finencial ssssis al fak value through profil and loss ane carmied in the
stolement of financial position st falr value with changes in feir value recognised in fnance
Income or finance costs in the profit or loss.,

The Group evaluates its financiol essets held for treding, other than derdvatives, o determine
whather tha inlention to sall them in the nodr term is still approprate. When the Growp s
unabla ta rade these finandal assals due ko Inective markets end menegement's intention
to sall them in the foresseable future significantly changes, the Group may elecl lo reclassily
thete firandal essets in me Goumetances. The reclassilication to loans end recelvables,
evallabie-for-sale or hald to malurily depends on the noture of the assol. This avalustion
doss nol affec! any finanoial aseats designated al fEir value through prafit or loss using the
fair value option ol designatian.

Derivatives smbedded in host contmects e eccounted for as separste doedvetives mnd
recorded al fair value if thelr econamic characlaristics and risks are not dossly relatad lo
thosa of the host contracks and the host contracts ame nal held for trading or designated ol
Tair value though profit or [ess. Thase embaddad dervetives ano mensurod &t fair values with
changes in fair valua moognised in tha profit or [oss. Reassessment only ocours if ther 1s &
change in lhe terms of the contrad] that significanily modifies the cash Mows tat would
othamwizs ba requinsd.

Loens and mesivablos

Loans snd recsivablos e non-derivalive financial sseate’ with fixed or delerminabia
peryments that am nol quoted In en sclive market. Aflor inltisl moasuremant, such financial
esssts ame eubssquantly measurod etemortised cost using the effactive intorost rale malhod
(EIR), lnes impairmant. Amortissd cos! Iz calculalsd by taking into sccount any discount or
pramium on scquisflon and foss or costs thot ame an integml pert of lha EIR
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2. Summary of significant sccounting policies (continued)
2.18 Financinl Instruments (continued)
(8) Financiel esssts (conlinuad)

(I} Subsequent messursmenl (continued)

Loans and receivables {continued]

The EIR amorlisation |s Includad In financa Income In tha profit or loes. The losaas arlsing
from Impalrmant ame recognisad 0 tha prof or loss In finance costs,

Held-to-maturity Investmants

Nan-dertvative financlal assafs with flxad or delerminable payments and fixed maturifias am
classiflad as hald-lo-maturty whan e Group has tha posithe Intention and abliity 1o hold
tham to maturity. Afler Inltial maasummant, hald-t-maturty Investments arm maasured at
amortisad cost using the affactive Intarest mathod, less Impalrment. Amortissd cost
Is calculated by taking Into accaunt any discount or pramium on acqulsiticn and feas or costs
that are an integral par of the EIR. The EIR amorisation i includad in financa income In tha
profit or loss. The lesses ariaing from impalment ere recognisad in the profil or loas In
finance costa.

This Group did not have any held-te-maturity Investments during the years ended 31
Devember 2017 and 2012.

Availabla-for-sals financial invastmants

Available-for-sals financial mvestrmants includs aquity and dabt sacuriies. Egquity
invasimants ciassifisd as avallabis-for-saln are thosa, which am nefthar ciassifind as hald
for trading nor dasignatad ot fair valus through profit or loss. Debt ascurities in this catagory
ars thoss which ars intended to be haid for an indsfinite period of time and which may be
soid In responsa to needs for liguidity of In responss io changss in the market conditions.

After inilal messursmen, avallsble-for-sale financial Investmants are subsegueantly
msasured at fair value with unmsalised gains or losses recognised as other compralisnsiva
Income in the avallabls-for-sals ressrve untl the investment is derecognised, at which ime
the cumulative gain or loss s recognised in ofher oparating Income, or detsrmined o ba
(mpaired, al which time tha cumulative kas is neclasaified to the profil or loss in firance costs
and removed from the available-for-eale resanve. (ntareat incoms on avallable-for-gaie debt
securities |s calculated using the effeciive interest method and is recognised in profit or loss,

The Group evaluates s available-for-gals financia! assets to delermine whethar the abillty
and Intention to =&l them In Ihe rear larm s still appropriate. Whaen the Group |8 unabla o
irade these financial assets due to Inaclive markets and management's intention o do so
significantly changes |n the foresseable fulure, Ine Group may elect to reclassify Lhese
financial assats in e cdrcumsiances. Reclassification to joans and recsivables s parmitied
when the financial asssts meel the definifion of lcans and recaivables and the Group has the
Irtent and abiity o hold these szsets for the foresssabie fuluie or unti maturity,
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

2 Summary of eignificant sccaunting policies (continuad)

2.19 Financlal Instruments (continuad)

{e) Financial aseets (continued)

(i) Subssagquont mesuurement (continued)

(i

Ayalishin-for-saia finaneial Investmnnis (contnusd)

Rec:assification fo tha held-to-maturity calegory |s pammitied only whan tha aniity has the
ability and infantion to hald tha financlal azsst accordingfy

For a financlal asast eclasaified oult of the avallable-for-sala calegaory, any previous galn aor
loss on that assat Inal has bann recognised |n aquity s amortisad o profit o loss ovar the
ramalning i of the Invesimant using the EIFL Any diffarence bebwasn tha now amortissd
oosl and the sxpectsd cash flows Is also amorisad over the remalning (fe of the assal
using the EIR. If the assat s subsequantty determined o ba Impalred, than the amount
mecorded |n equity = reciasatiad lo tha profit or loss.

Derecognitlon

A finarcial assal (or, whene applicable & part of 8 financial asesl or part of & group of similar
financial assels) is dermcognised when:

= The rights to receive cash flovws from the assel have expired;

The Group has trensfered Rs rights o receive cash fiows from the ssset or has
easumed an abligation to pay the recelved cash flows in full withou! materal delay loa
third parly under a 'pass-through’ srmangement and either (e} the Group has
trenaferred substantially all the risks end rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transfered nor retained substantially all the risks and rewuirds of the asset, but
has transfemed control of the assal.

When the Group has tranafomed its rights lo receive cash flows from en ossel or has
entered info & pass-through amangement, and has neither tansferred nor relsined
substantially &l of the rsks and rewards of the asssl nor trensferred control of i, the
aaset is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in iL

In that case, the Group also recognises an assodated llability. The transferred asset
and the associaled (inbilty sre measured on a basis |hal reflects the rights and
obligations thet the Group has retained.

Continuleg Involvemeant that takes the form of & gusrantes over the transfered assat

s measured at the lower of the orkginal earrying amount of the assel and the mximem
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2. Bummary of significant sccounting policles (continusd)
219 Financial Instrumants (continuad)
[b) mpairment of financial assots

The Group sssesses sl sach reporing date whether there is any objective evidenco that &
Minancial asset or & group of fingncial assets s impaired. A financlal asssl or 8 group of Minancisl
asseis [@ deemed to be impdired I, and only if, there e objective evidence of impaiment &s a
reault of one or more events thal has occurmed afler the inftial recognition of tha assel (an incumed
“loes event') and that loses svent hes an impact on the estimaled futune cash fows of the Minencial
gssa| or the group of finencisl assets thal can be reliably eslimated. Evidence of impaiment may
Include indicafions thal the dabiors or & group of deblors |s expedencing significan! Mnancial
difficulty, defaull or dalinguency In interes! or principal payments, the probabliity that they will
enter bankruptcy or ather finandial reorganiaation and where obeervable dats indicate that thare
Is B measurable decrease In the estimated filure cash Nows, such es changes In amears or
economic conditions that corelate with defaults.

fl carind &l =n coul

For financial assets caried ot amortised cosl, the Group fisl suwsesses whether objectve
evidence of impairment exista Individually for financal sssets thal are individually sigrificant. or
coliectively for financial mesets thal are not individually significant. If the Group detenmines tha:
no obieclive evidence of Impalrmentexists for an individually uesesved finencial asset, whether
gignificant or not, it Includes the msest in & group of fnonclal eseets with wmiler credit nsk
chamacierstics and collectively assesses them for Impairment. Assets thal are Individually
asuessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss (s, or contnues io be, recognised are
nol included In & collective sssessment of impairment.

I there is cbjective evidence thal an impeirment losu hes been incurred, the amount of the loss
iz measured o the difference belween the essels carrying amount and the presenl value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses thet have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimaled fulure cash flows is discounted &t the fnancial
assel's original effective interest rate. If & loan has a varable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring sny impairment loss is the cumer effective interes! mte,

The camying amount of the mssel s reduced through the uss of an allowsnce sccount and the
amount of the loss |s recognised in the profit or losa. Interes! income continues Io be sccnied on
the reduced carying ameount and is sccrusd uaing the rale of interest used lo discount the fulure
cash flows for the purpose of messuring the impairment loss. The inlerest income s reconded ox
part of finance incame n the prafit or loss,

Loans lageather with the assceiated ollowance sre writlen off when there |s no realistic prospest
of future recovery snd all collateral has been realised or hos been {rensfermed to the Group. If, in
o nubs=quen year, the smounl of ihe estimeted Impairment loss Inoreases or decreases
because of an evenl oecurring sfter the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment losy (s inoressed or reducad by adiusling the allowance account. If & future write-off
in lator recoverad, the recovery ie oredited to finance costa in the profit or losa.

Annual Asport 2012



ORNAPAPER BERHAD @rsase v

finctrrarked i Maleywa)

Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

219 Flnanclal Instruments (contnued)

(b}

(=)

Impairmant of financlal aesats (continued)

Avalebledor-aaie invesiments

For avedlable-for-asle finenclel investments, the Group sasssses al esch reporting dete
whethar thern Is ohjactiva svidance thal an investmenl or & group of investmants s impaired,

In the case of squily inveslmanis classifisd a8 avallable-for-sale, objective avidencs would
include & significant or prolongad decling In the falr value of tha Investmant below it cost.
"Significant’ is evalualed against the odginal cost of the Mvestmant and ‘prolonged’ against the
pariod In which tha fair valus has basn below lis original cost. Whom tharm Is svidence of
Impaimmant, the cumuiative loss - maasured as the differance batween the acquisition cost and
tha eurrant fair value, laas any Impalrment loss on that investmant previously recognised in the
profil or loss - is removed from other comprehensive Income and recognised in tha profit or
loss. Impaiment loases on equily Investments are nol reversed through the profit or loss;
increases in their fair value afier impairments are recogrised directly in other comprehensive
Income.

Fuiure inlemest income conlinues o be scorued based on fhe reduced camying amourtd of he
essol, using the rate of intersst used to discount the fulum cash Mows Tor e purposs of
maasuring the impairmeni losa, Tha interest income Is recordad as parl of finence incoma, f,
in a ssbsaquent year, the fair valua of & dabl instrumeni increases and the increass can ba
objectivaly ralatad Io an avent accuming aftar tha impalrment loss was recognisad n tha profi
or loss, the Impairmant loss ls-reversad through the proft or lees.

Financiel liabllitias

[} Initial recognition and messuremant
Financial Rabiities within {he scope of MFRS 138 are dessified es financial liabilites al
fair valua through profit or loss, Ioens and bomowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging insirumants in an effaciva hedga.as appropriats. Tha Group delsrmines the
classification of its financlal llabMites at inltial recognittion.

All financial linbillties arme recognisad Inithally a8t falr valus and, n the cass of loana and
boirowings, camied st amortised cosl Thia includes directly sttributable traneaction costa.

The Group's financial inbililies include mde and olher payables, bank overdrafis, losns
and borrowings and finandal guarantee contracts.

(i} Subssguant mezsurament
Tha maasuremant of financial lablittes dapands on thalr classiieation as follovws:

Financtal iablities 3t falr value through proflt or loss

Financial Habilties at falr valus threugh profil or inss (neluds Arancis) lablitiss hald for

trading and fnancial lahilftiss dasignatad upan Initial racognition as at fair valus through
profit or loss.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

2. Summary ef significant accouniing policies (continuad)
218 Finmnclal Insirumenis (continued)
(e} Financial Nabiimes (continuad)
(i} Bubsequeni measuremani (conilnued)

Financisl lfabiiities are classifled as hald for rading if thay are acoulred for the purposs of
salling In the near term, This category Includas dervaiive financtal Instruments sntered into
by tha Group that are not designated as hedging Instrumants In hadgs relstionships as
definad by MFRS 139, Separated embaddaed dervatives are aiso classified as held for
trading uniass thay ane designated as affective hadging natrumarnta.

Galns or lossas on lablitias hakd for rading are recognised In the profit or loss,

The Group has ne fnancial (Iabiltes hald for rading and has not deasignaled any financial
llabiMtas pan Infal racognition as at falr valua ihreugh preft or loas.,

Loans snd bomowinga

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently messured
at smortised cost using the effective inlerost rste method. Gains and losses are moognised
In the profit or loss when the linbiliiies are derecognised 3 well as through the effective
Imeresl rate mathod (EIR) amortisation process.

Amortised cost o caloulsted by lsking into secount any discount of premium on acquisition
and fees. or costs that are an Intagral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance costs in the profit or loss.

Financiel guarantés conlracts

Firancial gusrantes conbacis lesued by tha Group ame those confrecls thel mequin &
payment fo bo mado to relmburse the holder for @ loss I§ Incurs bocauss the specified
debtorfalls lo make & payment when dua In accordanca with the larms of a debl Instrument,
Financial guarantee cantracts are recognised initielly as & |lablity af falr value, adjustad for
tmneaction cosls thal are dimoly etifbulable to the Issusnce of the guamnies,
Subsequently, the llablity |s meesured al the higher of the best estimate of the expend|iure
required to satile the presant obligation at the reporting date and the amount recognisad
leas cumulative emoriisation.

As ot the reporting date, no values are placed on corpomie gueremess provided by the
Company to securs bank loans and other banking faclites granted lo lls subsidiaries wham
siich loans and banking faclliies are fully collalemalisad by fixed and Hoating chames aver
ihe property, plant and agulpment and other essats of the subsidiaries and whare the
directars regard the valua of tha credit enhancamant provided by the compormts puamttes
s minimal.

Annual Raport #0112



ORANAPAPER BERHAD srssesw,
{Incormofuins in Maleyeia)

Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

2. Summary of significant accounting policias (coniinuad)
219 Financial Instruments (continued)
(c) Financlal labliitdes (continuad)
(i} Darscognition

A financial kability is derecognised when the obligation under the llability is discharged or
canoalied or sxpimd.

Whan an exisling financial liability is replaced by anothar from the same lander on
subsisntially differant terma, ar the larms of an edisting liabilty sre suhstantially modified,
such an axchange or modification i= reaind a8 a derscognition of the ong|nal Gability and
the recognition of a new |iablity, and the differsnca in the mepective carrying amounts is
recognizad in the profil or losa.

(d) Offsatting of financlal insfrumeants

Financial assets and Nrancial labililies are offssl and the net amount reporiad in the slalemants
of financial positon if. and only if, there |8 a currently enforcesble legal right to offsel he
recognized amcunts and thene (& an intention 1o selte on a net basis, or 1o reallss the assels
and seltle the [abilities simullanecusly,

(o) Falr velue of financlal Instruments

The falr vthie of Rranclal instrurmints thiet @ raded in active markels al each reporting Jdale s
delermined by reference lo quoled market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long
positons and ask price for short positions), withoul any deduction for ransaction costa.

For financal instruments nol traded in 8n active markel he lalr value s delermined using
appropriate valustion lechnigues, Such echnigues may include using recenl srm's fenglh
markel iransactions, referenca W the current fair value of another (nstrument thal is substantially
tha same; a discounied cash flow analysis or other valuation modets,

An analysls of falr values of Mnanclal instruments and Turther detalls as o how they are
measured ane provided in Note 34,

2.20 Share caphtal and share lssuancs axpanses

An equity instrument is any contract thet evidences a residual intarest in the sssats of the Group and
of the Company eftor deducting all of its liablilies. Ordiary shares are equity instrumeants,

Ordlinary shares sm recorded el the procoads mecetved, not of dirsctly slinbutnble incremental

trursaction cosls, Ordinary shares are cassified es equity. Dividends on ordinary shires o
mecognisad |n equity in the pariod in which they are declared.
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Far The Yeur Ended 31 December 2012

2 Bummary of significant accourting policias (continisad)
2.21 Dividend distributions

Tha Group recognisas a labllty b make cash or non-cash disinbitions to ownars of sqully whan the
distribution s suthorssd and Is no langer al the discrmbion of the Group. A corrassponding amoun |a
mcognised directly in equity. Non-cash disirbutions ars messursed ai tha falr value of the asssts o be
distributed. Upon saliiamant of tha distributlon of non-cash asssls, any diference balwean tha
camying amoun| of the (lablity and the camying amount of the assels distributed la recognigad In
Incoma as A asparala (ine in statamant of comprahansive Incoma.

2.2 Provislons

Provisions ane recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) aa & result
of a pasi event. it Is probable thal en culllow of resources embodying economic benefils will be
mequired to ssitle Lhe obligation end a rellable estimate can be made of the emount of the obligafion.
Whers the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
cortracl, Be reimburssment 1 recognised as a separates assel bul only when the reimbursemenl is
virlually cerlain. The éxpense relaling lo any provision i presanted n the profil or lods nel of any
reimburssmant.

I the effect of the time value of money (& material, provisions &re discountsd using & curment prestax
rale hal reflects, where appropriate, the rsks specific to the liabiity. Where discounling is used, the
increass in the provision due to the passage of ime is recognised a3 a finance cosl

.23 Contingoncies

A corfingart lnbillty or asset (s 5 possible obligation or 2sset that arises from past svents and whoaa
oxlstanca will ba confirmad anly by the coommancs or non-oecumancs of uncartain futum avent(s) nol
wholly within the control of the Group.

Cantingant liabilllles and esests ars not recognised In the statemants of financlel posiion of the Group
and of the Company.

2.24 Segmant reporting
Sagmant Information Is not disclosad as the Group opamtes solely in Malaysia and Is principally
angaged in tha manufacturing and salm of one produc line, that is, corrupated boards and carton
bowas.
3. Significant accounting judgmants, estimaies and sssumptions

The preparation of financlal siatements requires menagement o maks judgments, eslimates and

assumplions that effect the reported omounts of revenues, sipansas, sssats and liebilites, and the

dissiasure of contingent lnbliities, st the end of tha reporting period. However, uncertainty about these

sasumplions and estimates eould result in culcomes that require & material adjuatment to the camrying
umoun! of the: assal or Bability affected in future petods,
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Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

3. Significant aceounting Judgments, eatimatas and sasumptions (continued)
3.1 Judgmants made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's sccounling policies, managermant has not made any critical
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, whish could have 2 significam. effact on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements,

32 Estimotes and sasumpiions

The key assumplions concaming the fulure and offver key sources of sstimation uncartainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant rsk of causing a matarial adjustmaent io the carrylng amounts of
assets and liabiibea within the next financial year, are described below. The Group basad its
assumplions and estimates on paramelers avallable when the financlal stalements were prepared.
Exisling circumstances and assumptions about fulure developmenis, however, may change due lo
market changes or circumstances arfsing beyond the conlral of the Group, Such changes are
reflectad in the assumptions when they coour.

{a} impairment of goodwill

Boodwlll is lested for impalmani annually and al other limes which such indicators sxdisl. Thie
requlred an sstimation of the valis In Lsa of tha cash-genarating units o which poodwlll &
dllocated.

Whan value 0 use calculstions are underiaken, managemen| must estimate fulure cash flows
from the cash-genemting unit and choose & sultable dizcount rate in ordar o calculale the
presant valuea of those cash fows. Further detalls of the camying value, the key essumplions
epplied in the iImpairment essessment and senaifivity analysia lo changes in the sssumplions ane
dinclossd in Note 18,

(b} impairment of loans and mesivablas

Tha Group sssesses &l sach roporiing dele whether thore la any objective evidence thal a
fnancinl ansst is impaired. To detarmine whether thers in objective evidenee of Impaiment, the
Group considers faciors such as the probability of insoivency or significant financial difficulties of
tha dabtor and defsult or significant dafay in payments.

Whare thera |2 objective evidanca of Impalrmant, The amount and timing of fulurs cash flows ars
aslimated based on hixtorcal loss experence for assets with similar credil fak characterstics.
Tha carrying amounts of loans and rmcelvables at the reporting date are disclosed in Note 18. i
thea pressni valua of sstimatad fultre cash Tlows |Incressss/decransss by 105 from
management's astimaies; ihe Group's allowance for impaimment will decrease/increase by
RM408,000.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

3. Significant accounting judgmants, sstimates and assumptions (continued)
3.2  Eslimates end assumptions (continued)
{c) Tanes

Ungertainties exisi with respect lo the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes In tax
laws, end tha amount and timing of fulure texabls Income. Difersncss arfaing batwean the
actual resulls mnd the assumptons mads, or fiture changes to such assumplions, could

necess!iEte future adjustmants (o tax ncoma and sxpenss already reconded.

Tha Group sstsblishes provisions, based on rmeasonabls sstimates, for possibls consaquencas
ol audits by the tex authoriea of tha reapactiva countrias in which it ocperates. The amount af
such provisions I8 based on varioUs fTactors, such 28 axperianca of pravious tex audits and
diffaring interpratalions of tax egulations by the laxable antity and the responsible tax autharity,
Such difarences of inlerpratalion may ariss on 8 wida varaty of isaues depending on tha
conditions prevaling n the mepective Group end s subsidiories domiclie. As the Group
aseassos the probabilty for Iligation and subsegquent cash oulflow with respect to laxes as
remuots, no contingent Habifity has been recognised.

Daferrad tix assate are moognissd for oll unuliized tex insses and unused fax credits to the
extant that it s probable that teable profit will be avaliable against which the losses and credits
can be ullised. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets thal can be recognised, besed upon the likely iming and the level of future
taxehle profits together with future lax planning sirateglas,

As al the end of the raporting perdod, the Group has Unutllised tex lozses, unabaorbad capilal
allowances and unabsorbed reinvestment slowances amounling in lotal lo RM1,570,000 (2011:
RM7.083,000) for which deferred lax assets have nol been recognised, The Group haa no
taxabls tsmporary differsnces nor any tex planning opporfunilies avalleble thal could partly
suppart the recognition of these loases and ored|is as deferred o ansals.

if tha Group was able to recognise all unrecognised defermed tax ssseln, after-lax profit would

Increase by RM3SS,000 (2011; RM1.771,000). Furthar detalis on taxes are disclossd In
Mota 25,
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4, Roavenus
Group Company
2012 2011 Mz 2011
RM 000 RM"0OD RM'000 RMTO00
Salos of goodse 226,338 225 BES - -
Dividand Income from subsidiares - - 7,182 1,408
Manegermant fees from subsidlades - - 227 229
220,336 225,668 7408 1,837
5. Interest Income
Group Company
012 2011 2012 2011
RM'DOD RMD00 RMT00 RM'000
Inlarest incoma from:
Loans and recelvahieas Ta G5 4 1
8. Othar Incoma
Group
2012 2011

Bad dabis mocoverad 18 -
Commission recslved T8 148
Falr value galn on held-for-trading Investment securiilas - 0
Forelgn exchange gain 21 108
Rantal from operating leasss 235 204
Ravarsal of allowanca for Impalrment foas on trade racalvables N 158
Dihers 185 534
588 1,164

T. Financo costs

Group
2012 2011
RM000 RMD00
Inlerest expanss on;
- Bank loans and overdrafts 3,183 2,028
- Obligetions under finance lcoses 218 3aT

Annual Raport 2072




ORNAPAPER BERHAD arsssew)

Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2012

& Profil bafora tax
The lollowing amounts have been charged / (credited) in amiving &l profil before tax:

Group Company
amz2 2011 2012 2041
RM'000 RMO00 RW'OO0  RM'0OD
Auditers’ remuneration
- Stelutory sudit (current year) 134 133 33 3
- Other services provided by suditor of the
Coampany i1 42 - -
Bad debts written off 276 212 - -
Carmiaga imwards and outwards 10778 10,3268 - -
Depreciation and amortisation:
= Proparty, plant and equipment (Nota 13) 8500 T 864 B =
- Land use rights (Nota 14) 131 112 - -
Employes bonefits sxponsa (Noto #) 20,322 18,318 B B
Impaimment loss on financial assets
- Trade recalvables [Nots 16(a)] 29 25 = *;
- Other recelvabies [Note 18(b}] 118 180 = :
Non-meecutive directors’ mmuneration
(Nota 10) 153 154 106 106
Oparating Inase:
- Minimum lease payments on fand end
bulldings a8z 874 g .
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
investmant securiias - 8 . -
Met loss on disposal of property. plant and
squipmant 7 102 . .
Property, plant and equipment written off 1,082 418 - -
8. Employes benafits expenss Group Company
2042 2011 12 2011
RM00D RAM"D00 RM000 RMO00D
Wages and satarias 17,481 18,807 ] ]
Coniributions to defined contribution
plans 1543 1,374 =
Soclal securty coniributions 142 153
Other banetta 1,186 Fi4 . =

20,322 18,318 A 8

Induded in employes bonafits sxpansa of the Group and of the Company ere execulive directors’
remuneration amounting to RM2,008,000 and RMB,000 (2011: RM 1,457,000 and RMB,000) respectivaly.

Annual Aaport 2012




ORNAPAPER BERHAD @rassev

(e ir Mslaywa)

Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Endad 31 December 2012

10. Directors’ remunenstion

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Exwoutive dinichorn RM'000 RM'D00 RMO000  RMO0O
Directors of the Company:
- Fess 282 152 - -
- Ealares and other emoluments 1,176 B 8 B
- Dwefined contribution plang BE - = =
1,542 160 B -]
Dthar directors of subaldiaries:
= Salaries and other emoluments 412 1.231 - -
- Defined contributlan plans 52 B8 - -
454 1,297 i -
Tolal axecttive dirmcton’ mmunasmstion
{meciuding benefits-in-kind) 2.006 1,457 B 8
Eatimeted monay valus of baneffa-in-idnd 16 10 - -
Total axeculive direcions’ mmunemtion
{Including banafits-in-kind) 2,022 1.467 8 8
Non-exacullve directors
Diraciors of tha Company:
- Fees a4 144 28 a8
= Othar amolimants ] 10 10 10
153 154 108 108
Total directors’ rermuneration 2175 1,821 114 114

The number af direclors of the Comgany who held office during tha financial year, whoso iolal annual
remunarmtion racaived from the Group that fall within the following bands ks analysad below:

Executlve direciora 2012 2011
RM150,0071 to RM200,000 = 1
RM200,001 to RM250,000 | 3
RM350,001 W RM40D, 000 -

RM450,001 to RIMS00,000 - 1
RM500,001 to RMS50,000 - .
RMS550,001 to RMB00,060 1 4
RME00,001 to RMB53,000 . a
RMB50,001 to RM700,000 -

RM700,001 to RM750,000 -

RM750,001 to RMB00,000 1

Non-executive directors
RWE0,001 to AM 100,000 3 3
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11. Incoms tax expansa
Major components of Income tnx expense
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2041

R&'00D0 AM000 RM000 RMW"000
Statements of comprahensive income

Cumrent Incoma tax

- Malaysian Income fax 835 751 1,800 300
= (Ovar)underprovision in prior ynars (198) 46 - -
Tar TET 1,800 20
Dofered tax (Note 26}
- Orgination and rovarss) of
temporary diferancas aB4 {1,037} < £
- Undermprovision In prior vears 40 1,386 - -
424 A58 - .
|neoma tax expennn recognised
in prafit or loss 1.181 1.158 1,800 300

Thea reconcilistion balwean lux axpanss and the product of accounting profl muliplisd by the spplicable
corporats tax rato for lhe years sndad 31 Decamber 2011 and 2012 s as follews:

Profit before tax 8,808 .07 7,154 1,358
Taxation al 25% (2011: 25%) 2,152 1,754 1,788 240
Tax sffact of;
- Mon-deductible axpansss 748 780 11 28
- Non-taxable incoma (88) - - (68)
= Utiisation of rednvestment allowsnoes - (941) - -
Dwfamed lax sssat recognised an;
- Unebaorbed capllal allowances {157} (a1) - -
- Unabaoibad relnvastmant alowances (854) (1.778) - -
- Unutiiised tax losses (382) - - -
(Ovarjundarproviaion In priof yeans:
- Gument inoome tax (1698) 48 - -
- Dafamed ta 40 1,398 - -

Incoms bax sxpansa for the year 1,184 1,158 1,800 300
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11. Income tax sxpense [continued)

The amounts elating to continuing operations svailatle for camied forwend to offsst againet fulurs tombie

income aro nE fallows:

Unutiissd (ax logsas
Unabsorbad caplisl allowances
Unabsorted meinvestiment allowances

12. Earninga par ahare

Group
2092 2011
RST000 RM'000

2,807 2,830
2,701 2,860
_ 21833 _ 26,807
27,531 32,506

Baaic pamings par share arnounts are calsulated by dividing the profil, net of tax, atiributable lo owners
of ihe parent by the weighted sversge number of ordinary shares oulatanding dufing the ysar.

Diluted eamings per share are e same as the basic eamings per share as theré are no dilutive polential

ordinary sharas outstanding during the year.

Prafit, ned of tax, attributabls to owners of the parant (RM000)
Walghtad avarags number of ordinary shanas In [ssus ('000)°
Basic eaminga per share (sen)

Diluted Bamings per ahara {san)

Group
2012 2011

7,285 5,801

74,224 75,251

8.8 1.7

a8 T

» The weighted everegs number of ardinary shemes tekes info sccount the weighied

avarage affec! of changes In treasury shares transactions during the year.
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13. Proparty, plant and squipmant

Laasahold Factory Flantand Othar
land  bulidings machinery assots Total
RM"000 RM'O00 RWO00 RM'000 RM'D00

Group

Cosl

At 1 January 2011 11,768 38,187 102458 8882 181,275
Ackditions - 4,080 17.654 635 22379
Disposals - - (10227  (1.704) (11,931)
AL 31 Decambear 2011 11,788 42 257 109, 885 TA13 1T,723
Additiors - 309 13.020 16838 15357
Dispasats . : (6,454) (T07) (7,161}
Wiitten off - - {2.910) (519) (3.420)
Reclasstfication - - 50 {50) -
At 31 Decamber 2012 11,768 42,856 113,681 8475 178,480
Accumuleted depreclation

At 1 January 2011 1528 9,887 58,672 8984 75,089
Charge for the year (Nots 8) 134 1,018 5,758 756 7,684
Disposals - - (v.088)  (1,530) (8,619)
At 31 December 2019 1,662 10,806 55,338 6220 T4,126
Charge for the year (Note 8) 134 1902 8,483 781 B.500
Dispasals - - 14,847 (683) (5.,638)
Writlen off - - (1.829) (s08) (2,337)
Raclassilicalion - {21 B8 {26) -
At 31 Decamber 2012 1,798 12,006 55,133 5718 74,853
Carrylng amount

Al January 2011 10,240 28,280 45 TRE 1,888 B6,184
Al 31 Dacember 2017 10,108 31,361 04,547 1583 B7.697
Al 31 December 2012 B.872 30,650 SB.A58 27167 101,837

(@) Theleasehold land end faciony bulidings and certain plant and machinery ars pledged to secure bank
wmnﬁw in Noie 23.

(b} Other asssts comprise motor vehicles, office squipmeant, fumiture, fitings and office ehovation.
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13. Property, plant and agulpmant (eontinuad)
(e} Properly, plant and squipmenl prchased by the Group during the financial year warm by means of;

2012 2011
RM0O00 RM000

Cash 10,678 22,115
Lease financing 4478 284
15,357 22,379

{d) The camying amaunt of property, plant and aquipmant acquired under instalment paymant plana
amount to RMB,748,000 (2011; RMS,852,000).

14 Land use rights

012 2011

Cost
Al 1 January 5,535 4,506
Agddiition - 839
Al 31 Dacamber 5,535 5535
Accumulsied amortisation
Al Januery Ba2 ero
Amartised during the year 134 112
Al 31 Dacember 1,113 842
Carrylng amount 4422 4,553
Amount to ba amortisad: 13 111
Mot later than ona year 524 444
= Later than one year but not lgter than 5 years 3,787 3,882
- Lstet then 5 years 4422 4,553

The abave properties eme pledged Lo secure bank bormowings a3 mofermed lo In Note 23,
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1B. Imvasiment In subsldiarias

Company
3122012 31122001 GL.01.2011
RAGDO RMO00 AMD00

Linguoled sharey at cost 85,085 77,185 75,585

Details of the subsidiaries. which are all incorporaizd in Mataysia, are as follows:

Proporilon of

Neme of subeldiardes Princlpal activities ownership Intsrest

HAz2M2 3122011
Ormapaper Industry Manufaduring and salo of 100% 100%
(M) Séln. Bhd. comugated boards and carton baoxes
Omapaper Industry Manufactuting and sale of 100% 100%
(Bt Pahal) Sdn. Bhd. caron boxas
Omapapor Indusiry Manufosturing end sals of 100% 100%:
(Perak) Sdin. Bhd, comugaled boards and carlon boxes
Quanlum Rhythm Sdn. Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
Bhd # carton boxas
Tripack Packaging Manufachuring and sals of 100% 100%:
(M) Sdn. Bhd. # caron boxes
Omapapar Industry Manufacturing and sals of B0% 0%
(Jakior) Sdn. Bhd. # cairton boxes

# Not audited by Emst & Young

(8) Subscription of additional shares I subsidisries

During the year, thae Company subscribed for an addiiional 4,000,000 and 3,000,000 new ordinary
sharas of RM1.00 each in Omapaper Induslry (Balu Pahal) Bdn. Bhd. and Quanium Rhythm Sdn.
Bhd. for @ cash consideration of RM4,000,000 and AM3,800,000 mspectively. The praportion of
ownaship interest In Omapapar [ndustry (Batu Pahat) Sdn. Bhd. and Quantum Rhythm Sdn, Bihd. hald
by tha Company remains unchangad.
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16.

Goodwill
Impalrmant teats for goadwill

Goodwill afsing from business combinstions heés besn alocated (0 twe individusl CGUs ldentifed
scoording o the subaldiaries for Impalrmaen lasting, tha carrying amount of which am &s follows:

Graup
31122012 3.12.2011 01.01.2014
RM000 RMD00 RMI'TO0
Omapapar Industry (Parak) Sdn. Bhd. ("OIP*) 1,574 1,574 1,574
Omapapar Industry (Johor) Sdn. Bhd. ("OL") 59 58 58
1.833 1,833 1,633

The recoverable amount of a CGU |s determined based on value-in-Use calcuiations using cash fow
projections of finuncisl budgets spproved by mansgement covering & 5 year period. The pre-tax discount
rals applied to the cash flew projections and the forecast growth rales Used o axirapoiale cash flows
beyand the five-year pericd are os follows;

P ou
22 201 2mz 2011
Budgatad gress margine 23% 18% 18% 4%
Growlh rate % 6% 5% %
Pt discount rate B% 8% A% g%

Tha caleulstions of valua In use for the GGUs are mosd sanslive to tha following sasumpiiona:
Budgelad gross maning - Gross mangins are bassd on svaraga valies achievead In ha 3 years pracsding
the start of the budget period. Theas are increased over the budget period for anticipated efficency
improvemenis,

Growih mies - The forecast growth rales are based on publlshed industry research and do nol exceed the
long-term average growth rele for the [ndusiries relevant o e CGUs,

Pre-tax discoun! ratus — Discount rates raflect the currant murket assasament of the risks specific to each
CGU. This ks the banchimark used by manegement ko assess operating performance end 1o evaluaie futurs
imvestment poposals. In determining the appropdats discount retes for sach CGL, mgard has bean ghvan
io ths yiald on a 10 yaar govermmant bond al the baginning of the budgetnd yaar,

Markal share assumplions — Thesa asaumpllons are Impariant bscausse, as wall as using h&mmh
growth rates (ag noted above), managemen| sssesgas how the CGU's posifron, refalive 1o ke

might change over the budgel period. Managemen! expects the Group's share of the slecironles and
related market on which the Group's products are dependent upon, to be siable over the budget period,
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17. Investment in sacurilies

Group
M2z 3. 92.2011 01.01.2011
RM'000 RM'0O00 RADO0
Held-for-rading invesimants *
- Equity Instruments
(quoted in Malaysia) . . ]
Availnble-for-ssle financial assals *

- Equity instrumeants (unquoted) - - 235
Total fnvestmen! securiti=s - - 244
. These investments were carmied al fair value through profit or loss.

**  Tresa (nvestmants wem camod al cost lass any accumulated impairment losses.
18. Inventories
Group
3122012 31422011 01.01.2011
RM'000 RAT000 RMODO
Al coat;
Row malerials and consumablas 20,308 20,048 21,585
Work-In-prograss 168 B9 124
Finlshed goods 2120 1,880 1.846
22,554 22,027 23,635
18, Trade and cther receivables
Group
nNA220M2 31.12.2011 01.01.2044
RM'DO0 RM'O0D RM'O00
Trade recoivables
Third parties 55 803 58,603 59,576
Aliowanos for impalment {2,344) (3,348) {5,657
Trada recalvabias, net 52,459 52,257 54,018
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18. Trade and othor receivables (continued)

Group

MA22042 23423011 09.01.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Othar recslvables
Third pariies 273 3017 4883
Sundry depositas 1B5 181 250
2,908 3,198 5113

Allowanca for Impalrment
- Third pariies (738) (618) (458)
Other recelvables, nal 2,170 2,580 4 655
Totzl trade and olher recaivables B4, 629 54,837 58674
Todal lrade ana olhor recovables 54629 54,837 58674
Add: Cash ond bunk balances [Nato 20} 19111 6,485 12 545
Tolal loans and receivablos 73,740 ™,218 71,218
Company

MA2:3012 3123011 01.01.2011
RM'000 RE"000 AM'000

Othar mcalvables
Subsldinrios 4,985 10,265 10,778
Sundry depoaits 3 2 2
Total othar receivables 4 868 10,267 10,780
Total other recefvaties &,0a8 10,287 10,780
Add: Cash and bank belances (Nota 20) 2453 180 215
Tolal loons and recewvables TA21 10,447 10,885

(a) Trade recelvables
Trade receivables sre nor-intemesl bearing and ere genenally on 30 o 120 (2011: 30 to 120) days

ferma. Thay am meognised at thelr ariginal invaica amounts which represant thalr falr valuea on Initial
recognition.
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18. Trade and other ecolvables (continued)

()

Trade recsivables [continued)

Ageing pnalysis of tads recalvablos

Tha againg analysls of the Group's trada meeatvables |s as follows:

Group

31122012 31922011 01.01.2011

RM"'000 RM'000 RMO00

Naithar past dus nor Impaimd 42,467 41208 40,184
1 to 30 days past due not impaired 5,240 4,966 3,856
31 to 60 days past dua not impaired 1,143 1,864 1,268
More than 61 days past due nol impaired 1,858 1,765 2,800
Total past dus not impalrad 8.251 8816 7.822
impaired 5,085 5,652 11,490

55803 _BSE03 < _S8STH
Recahmbles that are nafthar past dus nor impaired

Trade récalvablés thal aré nalther past dua nor impalréd aré creditworthy debtors With good payment
records with the Group. None of these trade receivables have been renegolinled during the financial
ear,

Racalvablas that ars past dua but nidd impained

Trade recelvables thal are pasl due bUl not Impaired are aclive accounts which the management
coneidors lo be recovershlo. Thesa rooslvabies ars nol sscursd by onhy collstoral or credit
snhancaments.

Racahmbips that are impained

Trada recafvablas {hat am detemined to ba Indlvidually Impalred ralais to thoss debioms that ans In
wigrificant financial dificulties and / or have defaulied on payments. These meceivebies are nol
sacurad by any collateral or credit enhancamanis.

Trads mealvablas that are Indlvidually impalred and the movemant of tha allowancs acoolnta Lised 1o
record the impaimmenl are &5 follows:

Group
M.2.2012 MA2.20M1 01.01.2014
RM"000 RM'000 RN'DDD
Trada recetvables - naminal amotinks 5,085 5602 11,480
Less: Allowanca for impalmment (3,344) {3,344) {5,567}
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19. Trade and other recelvables [conllnued)

(a) Trade recelvables (continued)

Receibvables that am | cohlinuded
Meverment in allowsncs scoounts: Group
2012 2011
RM'000 RM"DOO
Al January 3,348 5,557
Charge for the year (Note 8) 29 25
Ravarsal of Impaimmant losses (31) (158)
Bad debts written of! - {(2.078)
At 31 Dacamber 3,344 3,348

() Other racelvables

Subsidiarias
Amounits dus from subsidlardes ane unsecured and egayable on demand,

Other receivibles thal are |Impaimd

Dahar recalvabies that ars Individually determnined 10 Be imjzalrad relita 1o disbtars thal have dataullad
on paymants, These rocelvables are nol secured by any collateral or credit enhancemants.

Other recalvablas thel am Individually Impaired and the movemeant of the allowance sccounts used lo
racord tha impalmant are as folows:

Group
31422042 Mz2201 1.0 2014
RM0D0 RM‘DOO RM'000
Dther receivables - nominel amounts 756 2,546 1.373
Less: Allowsnco for impakment (736) (B18) (458)
18 1,027 8156

Meveinent in allowsnce accounts:

Group

2012 2011

At 1 January 818 458

Charge for the year (Nole 8) 118 160
Al 31 Decambar 734 818
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20. Caah and bank balancos
MAa2.2012 A2 01.01.2011

RM000 RMWT00 RMO00

Cash on hand and at hanks 18,256 5687 12278

Shorl termn deposits wilh |kcensed banks BS& 788 2608

Canh and bark balances 19,111 6,495 12 646
Compamy

Mi2am2 MA2201 H.020M
RM'000 RMD00 RM'000

Cash on hand and st banks 2453 180 215

Bhort term deposils ame mads for varying pariods betvweean 1 10 12 (2011: 1 lo 12) monthe depending on the
immediate cash mguiremants of the Group and of the Company. The deposite eom intorest al the
respsaciive shori-tarm deposit rales. The weighted average effective interesl rale al the reporiing date Tor
the Group was 3.6% (2011: 3.2%) por annum.

Tha daposlis with licansad banks are pladged o secum bank guarantes faciiitios
For tha purpasas of (he statements of cash fiows, cash and cash aquivalams compries tha following at the

meporting date:
Group
MA22042 3A2209f 01012094
RMDOD RM000 RMDOO
Cash and Bank balances 1211 8,485 12545
Bank overdralls (Nota 23) {1,884) (2,080) {3, 088)
Cagh and cash egquivalenta 17,07 3,406 9,459
Company
122012 2 ¥MA2291 M.01.2011
RM'DOO RN'D00 RM000
Cash and bank balencas 2453 180 216
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21. Other current assols Group
MA22012 3112201 01.01.2011
RM000 RM"Q00 RM'000
Advancad payment to suppliar of
propay, plant and squipmant 222 - -
Dapoails for purchasa of:
- Property, plant and equipment 1,027 3,073 1,185
- Raw malerials - 483 BT
Prepaymente 380 1,767 1,833
1,838 5,323 A726
Company
Jnqz20mMz .12.2011 01.01.2011
RMDO0 RM'D00 RM'000
Prepeyments 1 10 10

Tha above amounts e unsscured, ntenast-fres and repayeble on demand,
2. Aseots hald for gale

Group
3122012 3122011 01.01.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RATO00
At carmying smount
Piant and machinary - - 440

Thare was no llabildy directly associated with the above assets held for sals.
The sbove assets as held for sala were disposed of o third parties on 21 January 2011.

23. Borrowlings
Group

3122012 3M.12.2011 o1.01.2014
Maturity RM0DD RM"000 RM'000

Current

Secured;
Bank overdrafts (Nots 20) On demand 1,884 2,088 3,088
Bankars' acceplancas 2013 48,354 48,654 43,252
Trust recaipt 2013 17756 2106 4 810
Term loans 2013 2,204 1.290 &g

Financa lesse paynbles

(Nots 32{b)) 2013 1,033 1172 1,810
55,260 57,220 53,837
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2). Bomowings (continued) Group
NAZ202 N22011 20N
Meturity RM'000 RM'000 RM"00Q
Non-current
Secured:
Term kans 2014 to 2016 B.60T 4,814 2,546
Finance lease pavables
{Note 32{b)) 2014 1o 2017 2480 748 3,657
8.108 5362 8,103
Total borrowings 84,368 62,682 58,840

The remaining maturities of the bormowings as st 31 December 2012 are as follows:

Group

422012 MA22011 002014

RM'000 RM'000 REDOO

On demand or within one year 55,260 57,220 53,838

Latar than ons ysar and not |ster than 2 ysars 3126 2,887 2577

Letar than 2 yeam and nol laler than 5 years 5,880 2,188 3,625
Later than 5 ysam - 280 -

84,355 62,582 58 840

(=)

{b)

fe)

{d}

Bank ovardrafts

Bank overdrafls are densminalad in M, bear iInteres! on an average af 8.29% (2011: 8.34%) per
BANUM.

Bankers' socaplance end rust mosipts

Thasa ame usad (o firance purchasss of (he Company denominated In RM and are short term In
natuta. The weighled aversne effeclive Interest rals is 3.50% o 4.06% (2011: 3.50% lo 4 12%) per
AnnLm,

Taim loans

Tha leans are repayable over n perlod of 5 years, The welghtad everngs effective Interest mie in
T.45% o B.75% (2011, 7.10%: to 7.85%) por annum,.

Obligations under finance logges

Thasa obillgatjons ams sacummd By a charge over tha lsassd assate (Nots 13). Tha sverage
discouninsie impfict in the leases is 3.44% (2011; 3.52%) per ennum.
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23. Bormowings (continued)

The borow|ngs are secured by the Group's leasehold land and faciory bulidings and caraln other assals
and & debenture covering fixed and floating charges over all the assels and properties as disclosed in
Motes 13 and 14. The borowinge are additionally guarantesd by a director of a subsidiary and certaln
direciors of the Company.

24, Trade and other payables

Group
322012 31122011 01.01. 2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM"000
Trade payables
Third parties 16,873 12.876 17.832
Othor payables
Accrued operating expenses 2834 1.846 3317
Cither payables 3514 4,240 4,617
6,448 8,086 7.534
Total trade and other payables 2312 18,882 25,666
Total trade and other payables 23121 18,882 25,868
Add: Bomowings (Note 23) B4.366 62,582 59,940
Total financial labiliies camed al
amortisad cost a7 4487 A1,544 85,806
Company
3122012 3422011 01.01.2011
RM'000 RM"000 RM"DD0
Oihor payablas
Accrusd operating axpensas a3 3| |
Cihar payables : = 73

Tatal othar payabiss, mprasanting total
financial liabiiities camied ot amortised cost 3 31 31
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24. Trade and other payabies (continued)

{a) Trade psyables
Trade payablas ars non-ntafest bearing and are nommally settied on 30 1o 120 (2017; 30 to 120) days
Lo,

{b) Other payables

Other payables are non-intares! bearing and normally settled on an everage of & (2011: 8) months
28. Deferrod tax assots [ (liabilities)

Group
2012 2011
RM"000 AM'000
Al 1 January (3,3085) (2,948)
Recognised in income statemnent [Mote 11) (424) {359)
Al 31 December (3,729) (3,208)
Rsflectad In the sielemeni of Mnandial pesiiion as follows:
- Deferred tax assels 1,170 -
- Defemed tax fiabilities {4,889) (3,305)
(3.729) (3,308)
Defemed tax relates to the following:
Startaments of Statemants of
finencial pesition comprahenalve Income
2012 2m1 2012 2011
RM"000 RACDO0 RM'000 RM'000
Property, plant and equipment (8,142) {7.582) (560) 1,085
Unuliizsad tax lpesas a60 - a50 &
Unabsorbed capllal allowances 742 480 282 148
Unabsorbad reinvestmant
alfowances 3314 4,081 (74T} (338)
Others 7 {264} 271 {1,268)

(3.729) (3,306) (424) (388)
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25, Deferred lax assels ! (llablilites) (continued)

ﬂmhhﬂuhmmliﬁdh#MMMnﬂwmmmmhnmtmw
tasable profits or svalsbla temparary difarancas |n tha formsaaabia futum

Group
1122012 3MA22010
RM"000 RM000
Unulilised tax ksses 1,807 2,708
Unabsmbad capital aliowancos B3 824
Unabaorbad reinvestimeni allowances - 3,450
1,670 7,083
28. Shame capital Numbar of shares
HNAazanz 31.12.2011 01.01.2011
Auihorised RM'0O00 RM"000 RM000
Shares of RM1 sach 100,000 100,000 100,000
Amount
NALINZ2 NAZ2011 01.01.2011
RAM"000 RM"ODO RM000
Bhares ol RM1 each 100,000 100,000 100,000
Numbor of shares
NIz 41.12.2011 01.01.2011
lasusd and fully paid RM'O00 RE'D00 RM'000
Ordinary shares of RM1 cach 75,251 75,251 15,251
Amouni
3MA2.2012 M.42.2011 of.01.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM000
Ordinary shares of RM1 sach 75251 75,251 75251

The holders of ordinary ahares (excepl treasury shares) are entitied to recsive dividenids as and when
declarad by the Company. All ordingry shares carmy one vote per share without restrictions and rank squally
with regard ko the Company residual assats.
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Z7. Share premium

This non-digtributsbls share pramium smss from the issus of sheres &l @ pramium in pravious years.
Z8. Treasury shares

Treasury sharea melste o omdinary sharea of the Company thal am heéd by the Company. Tha amount
oongis{s of tha acquisition costs of reagury shans.

The Company poguired 1,027,000 [2011: nil) sheres in the Company through purchases on the Bursa
Malaysis Securitisa Bahad during tha financial year, The fobal amount paid to acquire the shams was
RMABB,00D (2011: nil) mnd Ihis was presented as e component within shareholdens' equity.

Tha directors of the Company are cormmilled o enhancing the value of the Company for its sharsholders
and balleve that the repurchase plan can be applisd in the bea! imemssts of the Company and (s
shargholdors, The repurchass tunsactions wone fnanced by infemally penerated funds, The shames
rapurchasad am baing hald as treasury shares.

28. Ratained samings

With effect from year of assessment 2008, tax on @ company's profit will be & final tax and dividends
distributed lo sharsholdars will be exempied from lax ("single tisr system®). Seciion 108 tax credis are
lecked-in as at 31 Decembar 2007 and companies with such lax credits are given & ransitional pericd of B
years untl 31 December 2013 to pithor ullize their tex credits and frank dividends under limited
sircumstances or o disregard such tax credits and exercise the option lo pay all dividends under the single
tigr sysiam.

Tha Company has not slactsd for the singlo tier system and s ot 31 Dacember 2012, & has sutficlont tax
credils and tax exempt profits to frank dividends out of ts entire retained eamings without Incurring any
ndditional tax labiiity.

30. Dividend

This represents dividend pald by a subsidisry o non-contraolling Intarest in respect of finencla| year snded
31 Dacamber 2011,

31. Rolsted party disclosurna
(a) Bale and purchase of goods and servicsa
In sdition o the related parly information disclosad elsawhane In the fnancie! elaterments, the

following significant tranaaciions batwsen the Group and related parties took place st lems agreed
batwaen tha parties during Lhe finandial year:
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31. Related party disclasures {continued)
(a) Sala and purchass of goods and services (continued)

Group Company
Maza012 31122011 3daz0d2 MaA2a011
RM'000 RM'000 RN000 RM'0OD
With subsidlaries
Management fee charged io;
- Omapapar Indusiry (M)
Sdn. Bhd. - - 160 162
- Omepapar Indusiry (Pamk)
Sdn. Bhd - .
- Omapaper Inausiry
(Batu Pahat) Sdn. Bhd. . -
Net dividend racaived from:
- Omapaper Indusiry (M)
Sdn. Bhd. - - 4261 Bs2
- Omapaper Industry (Johor)
Sdn. Bhd - - - an
« Omapaper Induslry (Pemk)
Sdn, Ahd - - 1,125

With other related parties
Sales in:
- Perfect Food Manufacturing

(M) Sdn. Bhd. 4,008 3,766 -
- Greglbrend Food Industries

Sdn. Bhd. 1,312 L4 -

Other moisted parties are companies in which 8 direcior of the Company, Sal Chin Hock, has
subslantial financial inlerest.
(b) Compensation of key management perscnnal

In additen to the diectors’ remunerstion &s disclosad In Nota 10, the salares and othar related
amomits payable to key menagomeant pamsonnel are as follows:

Group
202 2011

RM'000 RM"Q00

Salarlas and wages 12 1
Defined contribllion plans -8 1
14 12
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31. Commitments Graup

(a) m12 201

Capkal axpanditune approved and confraciaed fon

{b] Financs lesse commitments

The Company has finance leasas for cartaln fama of motor vehicles, offics aquipment and plant and
machinery (Note 13). Thess lessss do nol have tame of renswal, but have purchase oplions al
nominal values &t the and of the isasea t&m.

Futuna minimum laase paymants under finance leasas togalher with the present valus of the nat
minimum lsaso payments are as follows:

Group
3422002 $q22011 001201
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Minimum leesa paymants:
Not fatar than one year 1.233 1.248 2.200
Liater than one year and not |ater than 2 yaars 854 507 2238
Later than 2 yeers and nol later than 5§ yoars 1,813 288 1,589
4,000 2,044 8.027
Less: Amounts representing lulume
finance chamges (468) (124} {580)
3,632 1.820 5487
Present value of finance lease payables:
Not later than one year 1,033 1,172 1,810
Latar than one year and not (atar than 2 yaam 811 T8 1,885
Later then 2 years and not later than 5 years 1,688 268 1,672
3,632 1.820 5487
Less: Amount due within 12 months (Note 23) (1,033) {1,172) {1.810)

Amaunt dus aftar 12 months (Nola 23) 2,499 748 3,557
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31. Operaling lsasa arrangomonts

Tha Group has entarad inle non-cancallabie operating ianse agresments for the use of land and bulidings.,
The leases have an avernge ife of between two lo three years with renewal options in the contracts, Such
contracts includae fixad monthly rentals. The future aggregate minimum lasas payments wnder such leasas
as at the reporting dite but not Included as liabllities are a3 follows:

Group
Mazz2:2 3122011
RM'000 RM000
28 38
Not later than ons yaar 1 S
Later than ona year but not later than 2 yoeara pa?] 41

24. Falr value of financiel Instrumants

The foliowing amne clesses of finandal instrumenls that ame not carried el fair value and whose camying
amounts ard reasonable approsimation of fair valua

Group Company
M22012 31122017 3112212 3Tz
Nole RM'GO0 RM'000 RM'0D0 RM'000
Trade and other
recaivabing 18 54,629 54,837 4 568 10,267
Casti und bank balances 20 18,111 8,495 2453 180
Borruwings 2 £4,386 62,582 - .
Trade and other
payables 24 23,121 18,962 33 3

The camying amounis of the lrads and other recelvables and irade and other payables are ressonabls
approsimation of their fair values due to their relatively shart maturity periods,

The carmying amounis of bomowings are reasonabis approxdmation of thalr fair velues e tha intems! change
on thess bomowings are peagged to, of closa 1o, markat interas! ratea near or al reporting date.

35. Financlal rfsk managamant cbjectives and policias

This Group 's expoaad to financial risks arking from thelr oparstions and thie Lise of financial Insuments. The
key fingncal rinks include credit sk, Fquldity risk, interest reta dek end forelgn cumency risk.

Thez Bowtrd of Directors reviews ond agrees policles and procadunes for the managamonl of thesa risks,

I ts; and has boon hroughout the cumant end prevdous finencisl years, the Group’s policy (hat no dervetives
shall ba undernaken axcapt for the Use &3 hadging Instrumants whem appropriate and cost-affclant. The
Graup dees nol apply hedge sccounting and there are no oulstanding hedging instruments et repariing dats.

Tha following soctions provide detalts regarding the Group's exposurs o the above-montioned financial dsks
and tha objactives, policies and procasses for the managamant of hase riske.
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35 Flnanelal riak managemant cbjectives and poliziss (continuad)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

Cradit sk Is the risk of loss that may arse on culstending finendal Insiruments should & countorparty
datsult on its obiigaions. The Group's exposum b cudll dsk adses primedly from trede and other
recehmblas. For othar finenclal assels (including cesh and bank balances), the Group minimiss cradil
risk by doaling exrdusively with high credil reling counterparfies.

Tha Group's objective is to sask continual rovenus growih whila minimlsing lossas: Incurmed dus to
increpsad crodit risk exposure, The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It Is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trada on credit terms are subject to cradit verifice-
tion procaduras. In addition, mostvable belances are monitorsd on an angoling basls with the resul
that the Group's exposure lo bad debts is not significant. For tho relevant operating unk, the Group
doas naot offer cradi| terms without tha approval of the directons.

Exposurs o credi risk

At the reporting deie, ihe Group's and the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is represenied
by the camying amount of each class of financial nasets recognised in the siatements of finandial
position, with positive falr values and a nominal amount of RMB1,388,000 relating to u corporate
guerantes provided by the Company to a bank on subsidianes tank loans.

Information regarding credit risk mansgemant for tnade and other recaivebles and smoums thel are
naither past due nor impalred and smoums that are alther past due or Impeired are disclossd In Notz
18(=).

Credit fiak concentration profie

At the reporting date, epproximately 11% (2011 :15%) of the Group's gross trade recaivables wens
due from 2 (2011: 2) customers totalling RMS,257,000 (2011: RM7.661,000),

Liquidity risk

Liguldity sk ls the risk that the Group will encounier difficulty In maeting financial ohlipstions dus to
shortege of funds. Tha Group's exposum to liquidty rsk adsss primarly from mismatches of tha
maturities of financial assats and Nabilifes. The Group's objective Is o meintain @ belancs betwaan
continuily of funding and Roibility through tha usa of stamd-by credit facilltios:

The Group manages its debt maturty profile, opamiing cash flows and the evaliablity of funding so
as o ensung that mfinancing, repaymaent end funding neads e met. As parl of its overall liguldity
menagemant, the Group mainiains sufficlent levels of cash or cash convert/ole Invesiments to mesl
its warking capltal requiements In addifion, the Group strives lo maintain evallabla banking faciliss
@t 8 reasonable leved o s overnll debt position. As far as possibla, tha Group ralses committed
fundirg from finencial instiutions and balancas s portiolin with soms short tarmm funding 5o as to
achisve ovarall cost affectivennss.

Tha Group's objactive k= to maintain @ balanca bebwaan continuity of funding and fexibiliity threugh
tha usa of stand-by cred|] faclilies snd collaction from customers.,
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35. Financial risk managemeni cbjectives and policles [continuad)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Analysis of financial Instruments by remaining contractual maturilies

The maturity proflle of the Group's and of the Company's (labilities at the reporting date based on
contractusl undiscountad repayment obligations |5 as follows:

a2
Ondemand oo .
ar within
ane year fiveaysars  Todal
Group RACODO RM000 RA000
Trade and olher pavables 23121 - 23,12
Bormowings 55,760 f,784 85 544
Tolsl undizcounted financial llablities 78,681 9.784 B8 8B5S
Company
Trade and other payabies . - 33
Total undiscounted financial llabliites 1 - 33
31923011

&n demand
ar within S
RM"DDO RMO00 RM000

Group

Trade and other payables 18,052 - 18,982
Borrowings 57,297 5408 62,706
Tolsl undizecuntsd financial lab(les 76,258 5400 81,668
Company

Trada and other payables 3 - a
Tolsl undiscounted finenclal liab/ities 39 - a

(e} Inierast rale riak

Inerest rate fek is the rak that the fair value of fulure cash ows of the Group’s Ninancal instruments
will fluctuste bacausa of changes in markel interes! retos.
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35, Financisl risk mamagement objectives and policies (continued)

{e)

Intorest mte sk [continua)

The Group's Interssl rale risk afees primarlly from interesi-bearing borrowings. The Group manages
its intorest raln axposurs by maoinisining a pruden| mix of fixed and ficating mte barowings and
actively review lia debt porifolle taking Into account the Invesiment holding period and nadure of lis
mssots.

The information on maturity cates and offective inlerest rates of finencial agssts and Habllitles aro
disciosad In thalr respaeciive notes.

Sanaitivily analysis for [nismas) rmis dsk

Basad on the utliisafion of Nealing rate loans and barmowings throughout the reporiing partod, If
interesi rates had been 50 basis point lower (or higher), with all other variables held constant, the
Group's proflt before tex would have bean RM317.000 (2011 RM30E,000) higher {or lowar), arsing
mainly a6 a resull of lower (or higher) inlerest expense thal would have been (ncurred. The assumad
mavaman! In basla polnte for Interast rate sansltivity analyain 18 basad on (he climently observahla
marksl anvirenmant

Forelgn currency riek

Forelgn curmency riak is the risk that the fair value or future cash Tiows of & financial ingtrument will
fuctuate bacausa of changeas in foraign exchangs miss.

The Group is axposed to iransacional curraney risk primarily threugh sales and purchesas that mra
denominated In a cumency other than the respeciive funclional clrmancles of the Group entilies, The
currencies giving risa to this risk am primarly Unlied Stetes Dollars ("USD") and Singapors Dollars
("8GD"). Such trensactions are kep! 1o an acceptable level,

The nel unhedged financial mésels and financial liabiifes of the Group companies lhal are nol
danominabed in thair functicnal currencies are a8 follows:

Ned Nnanelal segats | (llabllitios)
hald in non-functional currancy
sGD uso Tl
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Ad 31 Decembor 2012

Trada and other recelvables b | 212 565
Cash and bank balancas 63 16 B8
406 227 B33

Al 31 Dacambar 2011

Trada and other recarvabiea T2 B58
Trade and other payables . (655) (655)
1 73
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35. Finsnclal risk managemant objectivea and policiss (continued)
(d) Forslgn currancy riak (continuad)

Sensithvity snalyels for intarest rate ek

The hypothetical sensilbvily of the Group's profil, nel of tex, to a 5% changs In the USD and SGD
exchange mies at the reporting date againat RM, assuming all othar vanables remain unchanged, is
insigrificant.

38. Copital mansgement

Thie primany cbjective of tha Group's capital menagemanl is to ensure that it maintains a strong credil raling
and healthy capital retios In order to support ks business and maximizge shareholder valuo,

The Group manages [l capital atruchure and makes adjustments o i, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital struclure, the Group may adjust the dividend paymants o
shamholders, mtum capital io shareholders or leaye new shares, No changes were made In the objeclives,
policies or processes during the yesrs ended 31 December 2011 and 31 Dacember 2012

The Group monilors capilal using 8 gearing ratio, which is nel dabt divided by total capital plus nel debl
The Group's policy is lo keep Lhe gearing rallo within scceptable levels. The Group includes wilthin nel debl,
borrawings, trade and other payables, less cash and bank bafances. Capital includes equity attributable to
aquity holders of the Group,

Group Company
MNA230M2 MAZIMT MAZ22092 31220
RM'00D RM'000 RM'000 RM'GOO

Bormowings €4 388 62,582 - -
Trede and other payables 23,12 18,8962 33 N
Lass: Cash and bank balancas (18,111) {8.485) {2.453) (180}
Nat debt E8,376 75,048 = -
Equity attributable 1o owners of

tha pareni 114,380 107,584 92825 By, 780
Capital znd net debl 182,736 182,813 82,625 87,760

Gsaring ratio 3T% 41% = =
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27, Autheraailon of MTnancial stalemanis for lEsun

This financial slelsmisnils for {he yesr snded 31 December 2012 wes aulhorised for issus I eccordance
with a resoluion of the directors on 18 Aprl 2013.

38. Supplomentary Informatlion = Breakdown of mallsed and unreallsed retalned samings

Ther breakdown of the mialined eamings a8 &t 31 December 2012 Inio realised and unrealised profits |s
presanted in sccordance with the directive tesued by Bursa Maleysls Securities Barhad dalad 25 March
2010 mnd prepared In sccordance with Guidance on Speclal Matter No, 1, Determination of Reslised snd
Unrealised Profits or Losses In the Context of Disciosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhed
Listing Requirements, as lssued by the Malayslan Instiiie of Accotintants,

2012 am 2012 2012
RM"000 RM'000 RM'0D0 RMO0D

Total reteined saminga of tha Comparny
and itz subsidiarias
- Realisad profis TT 485 63,004 arar 1,353
= Linraaliaed logsas [3.728) (5818} = -
73,736 57,388 B, 70T 1,353
Lass. Consolldation adjusimants (M5794) _ (36779) - -

Retalned eaminga aa per financdal
stalements 28442 21,157 6.707 1,353
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Analysis Of Shareholdings

As At B May 2013

Authorised share capital : RM100,000,000.00

Issued and pald-up capital : RM74,218,556.00

Class of sharea : Ordinary Shares of RM1.00 sach
Voling rights : 1 Vote per Ordinary Share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS

Rangn MHo. of
Sharchoidern % No, of Shares %

1o 29 10 0.55 434 0.00
100 o 1,000 a3 17.18 288 205 0,39
1,001 to 10,000 8ap 61.04 4,827 814 §.84
10,001 & 100,000 A58 2578 15, 7B6 404 21.2T
100,001 to 3,710,926 i 434 28,715,011 38,68
3.710.827 and abouve 2 0.11 24,500,888 33.01

1,822 100.00 74,218 558 100.00
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Dimmet Indirect
Hame Mo. of Sharea % Mo. of Share %
imtisar Dedima Sdn Bhd 18,654,888 25,11 - -
HSBE Narniness (Asing) San B 5,868,000 7.90 - -
Exmrrpt An For BS1 8A (BS| EK BG-NR)

DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS
(Based on the Regisier of Directors’ Sharmeholdings)

Hama Mo, of Shares % No. of Bhams L
Adifiah binti Ahmad Nerdin 34,000 0.05 - -
Ang Kwos Tang 10,000 0.0 18,634,858 * 2511
Achar bin Nayan 25,000 0.03 = -
Bal Chin Hock 848 400 114 22 305,768 # 30.08
Sea Wan Seng - - 18,634,888 * 2511
Siow Kee Yen 230.500 0.3 = =
Notas ;-

" Imerast by vrtue of thelr sharehokfings in Intisarl Delima Sdn Bhd

# Deemad Interest by vifue of him balng tha father to Mr Sal Saak Chwuan, Mr Sal Tzy Homg, &
subslanlial shersholder of Plilkan Sistematik Sdn Bhd and by vrue of his subslantel shareholdings In
Intiaan Dedima Sdn Bhd
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Analysis Of Shareholdings

As AL May 2013

THIRTY (30) LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS

Name of Shareholders No. of Shares Hold %
1. INTISARI DELIMA SDN BHD 18,634,688 251N
Z  HSBC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD

EXEMPT AN FOR BS| 8A (BS] BK 5G-NR) 5,868,000 7,80
A SA| SEAK CHYUAN 2 SR8 GAG 348
4.  SUPERIOR RAINBOW SDM BHD 1,722, 245 232
85 KUAH SAY CHONG 1,330,000 1.80
8. YEODSERKEN 1,173,000 158
7. GOHYU TIAN 1,157,800 156
8 GRANDELIR LAND SON 8HD 1,000,000 135
8, LUPTREND PERFORMER SDN BHD 1,000,000 135
10. 8Al CHIN HOCK 848 400 1.14
11. PISLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD

PLEDGE SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR NG FAA| @ NG YOKE

PE! (SRE/PMS) 720,000 097
12. JF APEX NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD PLEDGED

SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR HON MENG HENG [MARGIN) 710,100 .65
13. HLIB NCMINEES (TEMPATAN} SON BHD PLEDGED

SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LIM LEONG TIAN (CCTS) 673,000 091
14, SIANG TECK SIONG 649 500 0.88
15. SA] SEAK CHYLAN 543,000 0.8y
18, YAP CHOH NGA 542,000 0.ra
17. LIM HUEY TIEN 500,000 087
168. LOYOOM NIEN 468,000 063
18. PILIHAN SISTEMATIK SDN BHD 458, 324 062
20, LIMSIEW HUA) 446 800 0.&0
21. CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SON BHD PLEDGED

SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN CHIN HWEE (TMLKRAYA-CL) 440,000 058
22. WONG MENG KIANG &31,000 0.58
23. LIM HONG LIANG 430,000 058
24. OB KAY HIAN NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDON BHD

EXEMPT AN FOR UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD (A/C CLIENTS) 380,000 053
25. CHONE NYODK MOEY 348,800 0A7
26. MALACCA EQUITY NOMINEES [TEMPATAN) SDN BHD

EXEMPT AN FOR PHILLIP CAPTAL MANAGEMENT SDN BHD

(EPF) 348,000 AT
27, RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD

PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR FOO Kal 8ENG 318,800 043

20. AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TEO WUE SON

& TEQ WEE 800N 310,300 043
28. HLB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD

FLEDGED SECURITIEE ACCOUNT FOR LIM CHIN HORNG 304,000 0.40
30. LEEWEIGIA 300,000 0.40

Total 44,748,843 60.29
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